CITY OF ELKO

'%& * CITY MANAGER
) 1751 COLLEGE AVENUE
E l G} ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775) 7T7-T110/FAX (775) 777-7119

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, June 11, 2019
Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801, at 4:00 P.M., P.D.S.T.
Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council.

In accordance with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko

Website, http://www.elkocity.com, the State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website,

https://notice.nv.gov in the following locations:

ELKO CITY HALL
1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801

Date: Time Posted: June 6, 2019 at 8:30 a.m.

| ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE

| 571 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801

| Date/Time Posted: June 6, 2019 at 8:40 a.m.
i
|

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT
1448 Silver, Elko NV 89801

Date/Time Posted: June 6, 2019 at 8:50 a.m.

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY
720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801

1 Date/Time Posted: June 6, 2019 at 9:00 a.m.
|
|

Posted by: _Kim Wilkinson __Administrative Assistant ;¢"" ”e'é""'d or—
Name Title "Signature

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775)777-7110 or email at
kwilkinson @elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV or
on the City website at http://www.elkocity.com

Dated this 6™ day of June, 2019

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

commodatyons or assistance at the
e, Elko, Neyada 89801,

Members of the public who are disabled and require special
meeting are requested to notify the Elko City Council, 175
or by calling (775) 777-7110.

Curtis Calder, City Manager



CITY OF ELKO
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING
4:00 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, JUNE 11, 2019

ELKO CITY HALL, 1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted for
this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: May 28, 2019 Regular Session

I PRESENTATIONS

A.

Brief presentation and possible acceptance of a renewal proposal from Nevada
Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL), and approval of invoice for payment from
FY2019/2020 Funds in the amount of $464,971.41, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

As a member of the Insurance Pool, the City of Elko owns a share of the equity that
forms the basis for its financial strength.

Your agenda packet includes an overview of coverage offered for the following
fiscal year. The City of Elko’s total program costs for FY 2019/2020 are
$464,971.41, representing a 9.09% increase over FY 2018/2019. CC

Presentation by the Nevada Rural Housing Authority, and matters related thereto.
INFORMATION ITEM ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM

IL. PERSONNEL

A.

6/11/2019

Employee Introductions:

1) Aaron Gallegos, Golf Course Laborer, Parks and Recreation Department

City Council Agenda 1



III. APPROPRIATIONS

A.

Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Review and possible approval of Print ‘n Copy Warrants, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Review, consideration, and possible award of the Public Works Department
Preventive Maintenance Project 2019, to apply Micro Slurry Seal to select City
streets, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

At their April 9, 2019, meeting, Council authorized Staff to solicit bids for the
Preventive Maintenance Project 2019. Bids were received until 3:00 p.m., on May
30, 3019. DS

Review and possible award for the custodial services at the airport terminal, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Bids for the Terminal Custodial Services were opened on Friday, May 31, 2019.
Staff received one (1) bid from Royal Pane Janitorial who is the current Custodian
at the airport terminal. Staff would recommend signing a Two (2) Year Contract
with the provision of a One (1) Year Contract Extension should both parties agree
for a total of Three (3) Years. JF

IV.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.

Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally approve Final Plat No.
11-18, filed by Parrado Partners LP., for the development of a subdivision entitled
Great Basin Estates, Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately
9.650 acres of property into 38 lots for residential development within the R (Single
Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Subject property is located generally northeast of Flagstone Drive between Opal
Drive and Clarkson Drive (APN 001-633-030). Preliminary Plat was recommended
to Council to conditionally approve by Planning Commission May 3, 2016 and
conditionally approved by Council May 24, 2016. The Planning Commission
considered this item on September 6, 2018, and took action to forward a
recommendation to Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 11-18. MR

V. NEW BUSINESS

A.

6/11/2019

Review, consideration, and possible initiation to amend Title 2, Chapter 13 of the
Elko City Code entitled “Sidewalks, Curbs, Gutters” and to recodify it as Title 8,
Chapter 21, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City Council Agenda 2



6/11/2019

The section of the City Municipal Code regulating the installation of curb, gutter,
and sidewalk is currently located within the City’s Building code. With the
replacement of the current code with the adoption of the 2018 IBC, this curb, gutter,
and sidewalk section needs to be placed elsewhere in the City Code to continue to
be enforced.

Concurrently with this change in location, some updates to the language are
proposed. The most significant change is the addition of standard enforcement
language located in other sections of the City Code. Smaller changes include
rewording existing language and correcting typos. MR

Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate the deletion of Title 2, Chapter
1, Section 15 of the Elko City Code entitled “Exemptions for Existing Buildings,
Structures and Building Service Equipment Systems”, and matters related thereto
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

This chapter needs to be deleted as the City will be adopting the 2018 International
Building Codes that includes the exemptions for existing buildings in ordinance
839. KW

Discussion and direction from Council on legal options regarding delinquent
transient lodging tax payments for the Shilo Inn, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The Shilo Inn is routinely delinquent in its payment of transient lodging taxes. On
March 28, 2019, the City Attorney recorded a Notice of Tax Lien for August,
October and November 2018 unpaid transient lodging taxes. At the time of
recordation, these unpaid taxes, including penalties and interest, totaled
$30,983.65. Shilo Inn subsequently paid $12,282.28 for the August 2018
delinquent taxes and that portion of the lien was released. However, $18,701.37,
together with penalties and interest, remains unpaid for October 2018 and
November 2018 taxes. On May 9, 2019, the City Attorney recorded another Notice
of Tax Lien in the amount of $5,548.07 for unpaid transient lodging taxes for
January 2019, including penalty and interest. That amount has not been paid.
Transient lodging taxes for April 2019 are also delinquent, but a lien has not yet
been recorded for that month. The City has several options, to include commencing
a civil action to foreclose on the property pursuant to NRS 268.095(7)(b) for the
amounts stated in the recorded liens; commencing a proceeding before the City
Council to terminate, suspend or revoke the Shilo Inn’s business license pursuant
to Elko City Code Section 4-6-12; and/or commencing a criminal prosecution in
municipal court pursuant to Elko City Code 4-6-16. Staff seeks direction from the
Council as to which option or options to pursue. KW

Discussion and direction from Council on legal options regarding delinquent

transient lodging tax payments for the Thunderbird Inn, owned by Elko 345, LLC.,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City Council Agenda 3



Elko 345, LLC, the owner of the Thunderbird Inn, owes for delinquent transient
lodging taxes for February, March and April 2019. On May 13, 2019, the City
Attorney recorded a Notice of Tax Lien for December 2018 and January 2019
unpaid transient lodging taxes. At the time of recordation, these unpaid taxes,
including penalties and interest, totaled $6,289.10. Elko 345, LLC has also failed
to provide a number of Transient Lodging Tax Returns, which are required under
Elko City Code Section 4-6-9 and 4-6-15(B). Elko 345, LLC does not own the
property on which the Thunderbird Inn is located, but instead has only a leasehold
interest. Therefore, a. foreclosure action may not be cost-effective, since the
leasehold interest is unlikely to have value. The City may also commence a
proceeding before the City Council to terminate, suspend or revoke the Thunderbird
Inn’s business license pursuant to Elko City Code Section 4-6-12; and/or
commence a criminal prosecution in municipal court pursuant to Elko City Code 4-
6-16. Staff seeks direction from the Council as to which option or options to pursue.
KW

VI. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

A.

Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 9-19, a Resolution
providing for the transfer of the City’s 2019 Private Activity Bond Cap to the
Nevada Rural Housing Authority, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

The City of Elko has previously transferred its portion of the tax-exempt private
activity bond cap to the Nevada Rural Housing Authority. This year the Nevada
Rural Housing Authority is requesting the City’s allocation of the bonds for the
purpose of providing a means of financing the costs of single family residential
housing that will provide decent, safe and sanitary dwellings at affordable prices
for persons of low and moderate income. A request letter from Nevada Rural
Housing Authority and Resolution No. 9-19 have been enclosed in the agenda
packet for review. CC

VII. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

A.

6/11/2019

Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for the vacation of
approximately 900 square feet of the northeasterly portion of 3™ Street, filed by
David and Juliane Ernst and processed as Vacation No. 3-19, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Third Street, as it exists today, is an 80’ wide Right-of-Way. The applicant is asking
for a vacation of the excess right-of-way. CL

Review, consideration, and possible action concerning an appeal from AM
Engineering to not require a full forensic and structural analysis as a condition for
the tenant improvement to the old terminal building and the City allow the appellant
to mitigate any remaining issues concerning the additional roof structure under
2009 IBC, Chapter 34, Section 3412, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

City Council Agenda 4



The City entered into a lease agreement with Elko Leasing Company. AM
Engineering is managing the tenant improvement for Elko Leasing Company.
Recent activities associated with the tenant improvements have resulted in the
discovery that an additional roof structure was constructed over the original roof by
the City. The additional roof structure was not considered in the tenant
improvement design and submittals to the City. The appellant is in the process of
finalizing permitting to address revisions to the initial tenant improvement and is
requesting relief from a possible requirement to complete a forensic and structural
analysis on this portion of the structure. SAW

VIII. 5:30 PM. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A.

Second reading and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 839, an ordinance
amending Title 2, Chapters 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 & 13 of the Elko City Code entitled
“Building Regulations” by adding 2018 International Code, and corresponding
amendments, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On January 9, 2018, Council directed Staff to initiate the adoptions of the 2018
International Building Codes and initiate a Business Impact Statement. On May 14,
2019 Council found that Ordinance No. 839 does not impose a direct and significant
economic burden on a business or directly restrict the formation, operation or
expansion of a business. On May 28, 2019, Council approved first reading of
Ordinance No. 839. KW

Second reading and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 840, an ordinance
amending Title 6, Chapter 1, of the Elko City Code entitled “Fire Code”, and other
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On February 26, 2019, Council approved the initiation on Ordinance No. 840 and
directed Staff to complete a Business Impact Statement. On May 14, 2019, Council
found that Ordinance No. 840 does not impose a direct and significant economic
burden on a business or directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a
business. On May 28, 2019 Council approved first reading of Ordinance No. 840.
Kw

IX. REPORTS

NECmOTEUNWE

6/11/2019

Mayor and City Council
City Manager
Assistant City Manager
Utilities Director
Public Works

Airport Manager

City Attorney

Fire Chief

Police Chief

City Clerk

City Planner

City Council Agenda 5



Development Manager
Administrative Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director
Civil Engineer

Building Official

vOZZ I

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

NOTE: The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time.
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an
item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

Curtis Calder
City Manager

6/11/2019 City Council Agenda 6



City of Elko )
County of Elko )
State of Nevada ) SS May 28, 2019

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting
beginning at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 28, 2019.

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Reece Keener.
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
Mayor Present: Reece Keener

Council Present: Councilwoman Mandy Simons
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein
Councilman Chip Stone left at 5:54 p.m.
Councilman Bill Hance

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Jeff Ford, Building Official
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager
Dennis Swrickland, Public Works Director
Ben Reed Jr., Police Chief
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director
Jim Foster, Airport Manager
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Dale Johnson, Water Superintendent
Dean Cernick, Assistant Water Superintendent
Dave Stanton, City Attorney
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician
Mike Haddenham, WRF Superintendent
Jack Snyder, Fire Department
Matt Griego, Fire Chief
Mike Hess, Landfill Superintendent

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 1 of 14



item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

There were no public comments.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: May 14, 2019 Regular Session
The minutes were approved by general consent.

L PRESENTATIONS

A. Proclamation by the Mayor in recognition of the month of June as Men’s Health
Month, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ITEM ONLY - NON
ACTION ITEM

Mayor Keener read the Proclamation.

B. Pursuant to NRS 354.596, review, discussion, and approval of the Final Budget
for the City of Elko for Fiscal Year 2019/2020, inclusive of all funds, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Curtis Calder, City Manager, gave a presentation on the 2019/2020 Fiscal Year Budget (Exhibit
“A”), and handed out a Final Budget Summary (Exhibit “B”) and a copy of the Final Budget
(Exhibit “C”). He explained he will be making a few changes before this gets sent to the State
and went over each fund.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilwoman
Simons, to approve the Final Budget for the City for FY 2019-2020, inclusive of all funds,
with the minor changes that Mr. Calder identified.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
II. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Review, consideration, and possible acceptance of a Grant of Easement between
Joy Global Surface Mining Inc., and the City of Elko, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

This easement was requested by the City of Elko in response to satisfy NDEP
requirement. RL

*x A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance to
approve the Consent Agenda.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

III. APPROPRIATIONS

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 14



Councilman Hance asked about the Freon recapture. Are we getting any of that back from
people that bring it in.

Mike Hess, Landfill Superintendent, answered we do not get anything back from the general
public.

Mayor Keener said he noticed we are still hauling tires. Has that cost changed at all?
Mr. Hess answered those costs are holding steady.

*x A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to
approve the general warrants.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review and possible approval of Print ‘n Copy Warrants, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*k A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to
approve the Print ‘N Copy warrants.

The motion passed. (4-0 Mayor Keener abstained.)

C. Review, consideration, and possible issuance of final acceptance or the East
Secondary Clarifier Rehabilitation Project 2019, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The Gateway Company of Utah, LLC has completed the work. Staff recommends
the issuance of final acceptance. There were no change orders for the project. RL

Ryan Limberg, Utility Director, explained the work has been done ahead of schedule. He
recommended final acceptance.

Mayor Keener pointed out that the appropriation was listed at just over $104,000 but the
budgeted amount was listed as $81,700.

- Mr. Limberg said when they were doing the budget a year ago, the WRF Superintendent had
reached out to some previous contractors that have done this work for us in the past. Their
- estimate was lower than what was budgeted. When we got into the project, none of those
contractors bid on the project. The bids came in higher than expected and we awarded it to the
lowest bidder. They do have the balance in the Sewer Fund to pick up the difference.

i A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
issue Final Acceptance for the East Secondary Clarifier Rehabilitation Project 2019.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 3 of 14



IV.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a request from Double Dice RV
Park (Ms. Lori Vavak) for reimbursement of water damage related expenses due
to higher than normal water pressure at Double Dice RV Park, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

At the May 14, 2019 City Council meeting, action was taken by Council to table
this item until the May 28, 2019 meeting.

On July 25, 2018, the pressure at Double Dice RV Park was checked in response
to a customer request. It was 110 psi. Typical pressure here is in the 65-85 psi
range. The root cause of the high pressure was a faulty City Pressure Reducing
Valve, which was promptly repaired.

In the attached backup documents, Double Dice RV Park claims this has been an
ongoing problem for over 2 years. City Staff refute this claim. City insurance
(Alternative Service Concepts) has denied coverage of this claim and suggested
Double Dice RV Park install “proper equipment” and “prevention measures” such
as their own pressure reducing valve. Uniform Plumbing Code section 608.2
requires customers to install and maintain their own pressure reducing valve when
the water pressure exceeds 80 psi. RL

Mr. Limberg explained this was tabled at last meeting. In the packet, there is a letter from Dean
Vavak dated 5/15/2019. There are also two statements; one from Dean Cernick, Assistant Water
Superintendent, and one from Dale Johnson, Water Superintendent. The fees that were
reimbursed in 2015 were questioned at the last meeting. The amount reimbursed was $1,795.
That was not a Council decision; it was a staff action. The reimbursement was signed by the
Superintendent. It would have been on warrants. He did give a report in a 2015 Council
Meeting where he explained the issue. He was asked at the last meeting if the Vavas or Double
Dice was ever informed that they should install their own Pressure Reducing Valve. If you look
at the statements from Dean Cernick and Dale Johnson, they both assert that was mentioned to
the Vavaks after the 2015 event. In City Code 9-1-5(M) talks about damages through leaking
pipes and fixtures. The last sentence of that subsection states, “the City Council’s jurisdiction
and responsibility ends at the property line. The City Council will in case be liable for damages
occasioned by water running from open or faulty fixtures, or from broken or damaged pipes
inside the property lines.” The location where the pipes were damaged was inside the property
lines.

Dean Vavak 3730 E. Idaho Street, said basically no one told him that or would he have done it.
All the RV’s have pressure reducers. Before 2015, they were being charged a lot of money for
water. They just wanted to pay for what they use. He had a vault put in and the City drew up the
plans. The vault was built to the City’s specs. There was no pressure regulator in the City specs.
When this happened in 2015, the City helped him fix the issue and he thought that was it. He
was reimbursed for the damages. Now, in 2018 they started having pressure problems again. He
was told to get a pressure regulator and check the pressure. If the pressure got past a certain
number he was supposed to call. It was up to 135 psi and he called. There was more cost than
what he reported. He asked the City employees for help fixing the problem and he was told they

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 4 of 14



couldn’t help. His wife helped him. The pressure blew out two of their washers and the back
out plumbing. He asked Dean Cernick what to do and he was told to turn the costs into the City
insurance. He is looking at getting a pressure regulator put on the water line in the vault. He
didn’t make the pressure go up either time. It has been a lot of problems. He even had sprinkler
issues.

Mayor Keener said no one is contesting that they had pressure problems.

Mr. Vavak insisted that the vault was built to the City specifications and no one told him to

install a pressure regulator. Why wasn’t the pressure regulator included in the specs? Someone
dropped the ball.

Councilwoman Simons asked if we had the specs for the vault from 2015.

Mr. Vavak said the City drew it up. The City made him change the pipe from 6 inches to 4
inches. It was at 6 inches for the Fire Code.

Mr. Limberg said the meter vault was installed long before 2015. The last pressure issues here
were in 2015 and is when Dale Johnson claims he mentioned to Mr. Vavak that he should
consider a pressure reducing valve, and Dean Cernick collaborates that statement. The meter
vault was installed long before that time. The meter and meter sizing is not the issue. The issue
is the reimbursement. When we hand out anything to property owners about the insurance, we
do not tell them the insurance will handle it. We don’t know what the insurance will do. We do
tell them to submit it to the City insurance, or call the City Clerk to file a claim. The 135 psi
issue that keeps coming up, he did some calculations with the City Engineer. If the water tank is
full and overflowing, the max pressure that can get to the Double Dice RV Park is 116 psi. It
doesn’t matter what that pressure really was, 80 psi is what the UPC calls out. If you are above
80 psi, you need to put in a pressure reducing valve and the customer needs to install that. In a
situation like this, 80 psi is what the Building Department would be enforcing. These same
codes were in effect when this RV Park was built.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, clarified that in regards to 4” to 6” in the meter, reducing would
increase velocity of flow through that device but does not increase the pressure in that device or
anything downstream of it on the property.

Lori Vavak, 3730 E. Idaho Street, said she was in the ditch with Dean when the pressure first
went up. When Mr. Johnson and Mr. Cernick pulled up they explained they were trying to get
pressure up to the Hilton. The only reason they expect payment this time is because they were
paid the last time. No one ever told him that a pressure reducing valve should be on there. They
have passed every inspection so she wasn’t sure at what point the ball was dropped. They have
complied with everything. She is fine with the City responsibility ending at the property line as
long as the City equipment is working properly. The City pressure damaged her lines. The lines
were fine until the pressure damaged them. Why would they have been told to turn it into the
insurance if it wasn’t going to be covered?

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, explained that Loren Landa, an attorney in his firm, does work for

Double Dice RV Park and the Vavaks. His firm has a conflict of interest in this case. He does
see some legal issues here. Both sides need legal advice on this. He recommended that if Council

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 5 of 14



was inclined to seek legal advice on this, they should table it and get a legal opinion from
Counsel that doesn’t have a conflict of interest.

Mayor Keener asked Curtis Calder if the City had any liability for designing vault.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said he didn’t know for sure because he wasn’t an attorney. He did
know that Ferron Konakis was the City Engineer at the time and was involved in designing the
meter pit and the vault but he didn’t know to what degree. From a practical standpoint, that if
the City wanted to go out and seek legal advice, we will probably end up spending more on legal
fees than just coming to some sort of an agreement on an amount to pay. It is apparent that there
is no pressure reducing valve. This park was built a long time ago. Regarding the previous
payment, a lot of small claims, when they come in to the City Clerk, there is a determination
made at the City Clerk’s Office, that if it doesn’t reach the deductible level for the insurance
policy, that they will just pay out the claim. Those claims are supposed to be submitted to the
insurance carrier for review and determination of coverage, but that didn’t always happen. This
claim was submitted to the third-party claims administrator for the coverage determination. The
first time it probably wasn’t.

Mr. Thibault said the plan that the City provided the Vavaks was a standard detail for 3” to 8”
water meter. It is the standard detail that they would provide to anyone in the city. It does not
account for high pressures. This is just the general detail available on our website.

Councilwoman Simons noted that this detail was not specific to anyone; it is generic.

Mr. Thibault said that according to the Vavaks, this is what the City provided them to build their
meter pit. That makes sense because we would give anyone building a meter pit this detail that
shows the pieces needed for a proper meter pit.

Mayor Keener said that as a customer of NV Energy, 99.9% they provide reliable power but
there are times where there are surges. He has surge protection on all of his delicate equipment.
That is the same thing we are talking about with the pressure reducing valves.

Councilwoman Simons thought these people try to maintain a very nice facility and work hard to
do so. All of a sudden, due to something the City is doing, it damages a bunch of stuff. She can
see that putting liability on the City. But she doesn’t see that the City has liability if someone
didn’t tell them to install the pressure reducing valves. That should be the responsibility of the
business owner. The City cannot be held responsible just for that.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked the Vavaks if they submitted this to their insurance.

Ms. Vavak said she didn’t want to submit it to her insurance because that would raise her
insurance.

Mr. Vavak said they didn’t submit to their insurance because the City reimbursed them the last
time.

Councilman Schmidtlein said regarding the letter from Alternative Services, where it said, “since
this incident happened and will continue to occur until you install the property equipment on

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 6 of 14



your property, we suggest you consider some prevention measures.” When did they receive this
letter?

Mr. Vavak said it was sent to Sun Valley Idaho. They got it the day of the Council Meeting.

Councilman Schmidtlein said Mr. Vavak stated he started to pursue getting a pressure reducing
valve quote to get one installed.

Mr. Vavak said they were going to try to put it in the vault.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked City staff if there were any email correspondence that the Double
Dice or Vavaks received any of this correspondence?

Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk, said she had email from the insurance company saying they had
received it and that all communication needed to go through them. She had them communicating
with ASC and Dain. She did not have actual copies of emails that they were emailed the letter.
She had no way of knowing if that address was correct or not.

Mayor Keener asked for thoughts from Councilman Hance and Stone.

Councilman Hance said his main concern is the washers. If you know you need to put a
regulator on an RV, you should probably put a regulator on a washer.

Mr. Vavak said he was a fair guy. He did a lot of the labor himself. The City dropped the ball
and he dropped the ball. He offered to take off his labor and split the bill in half. That will make
it $4,900 and the City would not have to get any attorneys involved.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked if council agrees to come to terms to potentially split the costs,
would they be willing to file a settlement release.

Mr. Vavak said, absolutely.

Mayor Keener thought the City’s maximum liability would be $5,000 if the claim had been
approved by insurance. He wondered if this opened up the City to future events if a situation
came up with another property owner that experiences a high pressure situation like they did.

Mr. Stanton said that in general, the City is obligated to treat similarly situated people the same.
It is an equal protection principal.

Mr. Calder stated that in this case, findings would be helpful. Council can differentiate between
RV parks and a different type of facility.

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Hance, to
award the complainant $5,000 and in exchange, they will provide a Hold Harmless and
Release of Liability to the City of Elko, and this is a very unique situation in that we are
dealing with an RV Park, which is different than almost any other type of business in terms
of their use of water utilities.

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 7 of 14



After the motion and before the vote, Councilman Schmidtlein, said he thought the City was
being fair. Everyone is taking responsibility. The Vavaks have been officially noticed what
they need to do.

Councilwoman Simons added that even without written notification, the business owners need to
be aware of every responsibility. Don’t wait for the City to tell you.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally approve Final Plat No.
11-18, filed by Parrado Partners LP., for the development of a subdivision entitled
Great Basin Estates, Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately
9.650 acres of property into 38 lots for residential development within the R
(Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Subject property is located generally northeast of Flagstone Drive between Opal
Drive and Clarkson Drive (APN 001-633-030). Preliminary Plat was
recommended to Council to conditionally approve by Planning Commission May
3, 2016 and conditionally approved by Council May 24, 2016. The Planning
Commission considered this item on September 6, 2018, and took action to
forward a recommendation to Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 11-18.
MR

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, asked Council to table this item. NDEP denied the most
recent resubmittal by the developer. Now they will be required to uncover a certain portion of
their water and storm drain system so that Ryan Limberg can inspect it. We may be seeing this
for a while longer. She went on to say there might be an option. We can make a decision such
as approving this with conditions on it that they can’t do anything before NDEP lifts the cease
and desist order. Maybe at the next meeting we can have an alternative solution.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked if they could make a motion to give Mr. Capps 30 or 90 more
days to comply or we will move it off the agenda.

Mayor Keener thought Mr. Capps was at the mercy of engineers and NDEP. It is a matter of
when that approval will come through.

Ms. Rambo said her conversations with NDEP indicate that as soon as they uncover this place
they want to look at, and Mr. Limberg says it is okay, they will lift the order. If it is not okay
then they would have to repair it in order to lift the order.

Ryan Limberg, Utility Director, said what he heard today was the contractor hoping to do that
work in the next week. He didn’t think the work will take a long time.

ok A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to

table this item.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 8 of 14



BREAK
VII. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Review, consideration, and possible action to rename the segment of 15% Street,
south of Silver Street to the cul-de-sac, to Walters Court, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

This request is from the City of Elko Police Department Honor Guard. The name
“Walters” is referencing the Elko Police Department’s only line of duty death to
this date, Officer Clyde “Rusty” Walters. The City Council accepted the name
change petition at their April 23, 2019 meeting and directed Staff to set the matter
for a public hearing. BT

Mayor Keener called for public comment without a response.

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman
Schmidtlein, to approve the action to rename a segment of 15" Street, south of Silver Street
to the cul-de-sac, to Walters Court.

' The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution No. 8-19, a resolution
of the Elko City Council amending the Elko City Master Plan Transportation
Component and Transportation Atlas Map #12, filed as Elko City Master Plan
Amendment No. 1-19, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On May 7, 2019 the Planning Commission adopted its Resolution No. 1-19 to
amend the Transportation Component and the Transportation Atlas Map #12 of
the current Elko City Master Plan, and also took action to recommend City
Council adopt said amendment via a resolution. An amendment of this type
requires positive action by both the Planning Commission and the City Council. If
the City Council suggests any changes to the Master Plan amendment as adopted
by the Planning Commission, the Master Plan must first go back to the Planning
Commission for review and approval. CL

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, said this was brought to the attention of Staff at a Stage 1 meeting
for a subdivision on a property that was recently purchased from the Elko County School
District. Over the years, property owners have done quiet title changes to the areas we had listed
as future roadways. This change to the Master Plan eliminated El Armuth Drive from Sage Crest
Drive to Celtic Way, and it also eliminated the extension of El Armuth to the 180 frontage road.
This proposal went through two hearings at Planning Commission. She recommended approval.

Mayor Keener called for public comment without a response.
* A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to

adopt Resolution No. 8-19, a resolution of the Elko City Council amending Elko City
master Plan Transportation Component and Transportation Atlas Map #12.

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 9 of 14



The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
V. NEW BUSINESS

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval for a grant of a utility, access, and
maintenance easement on a portion of APN 001-673-003 to Sierra Pacific Power
Company, a Nevada Corporation, dba NV Energy associated with utility service
to an abutting private property, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

A City-owned parcel separates the existing NV Energy power poles and a
privately-owned parcel currently being developed. The requested easement is to
provide power service to this developing parcel along with the ability for NV
Energy to access and maintain the new service line. MR

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, explained the property on the overhead screen outlined
in red is privately owned property being developed. NV Energy asked for an easement across
our property because of the location of the power poles. Staff has reviewed this and they do not
have any issues with this easement.

Mayor Keener asked if there would be a power line over the area marked easement.
Ms. Rambo said it would be underground.

Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director, said per their franchise agreement, new lines are
required to go underground.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Hance,
to approve a grant of a utility, access and maintenance easement on a portion of APN: 001-
673-003 to Sierra Pacific Company, a Nevada Corporation, dba NV Energy associated with
utility service to an abutting private property.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of the First Amendment to Contract
of Purchase and Sale, between Bailey & Associates, LLC and City of Elko, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Bailey & Associates was the only bidder at the public auction for the sale of APN
001-066-005. Staff, as well as Elko County Assessor’s Office, has since
determined that the title to the property does not contain a needed right-of-way
dedication. With this amendment, Bailey & Associates LLC will be agreeing to
dedicate the northeasterly 10’ of Lot 1 to the City of Elko after the purchase of the

property. CL

Ms. Laughlin explained the City entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Bailey and
Associates. We received a check to start the escrow. Then we determined there were some
discrepancies between what the Assessor had mapped, what we felt the property was, what it was
appraised at and the legal description. According to the legal description, it didn’t say, “minus
the easterly 10 feet of Lot 1.” We felt something happened to the 10 feet over the years and we

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 10 of 14



tried to determine what happened. Jon Bailey knew he was buying 40 feet but the legal
description was not accurate. With this agreement, he is still agreeing to the sale of the property
and he is agreeing to dedicate the 10 feet to the City to make the property the actual 40 feet it
truly is.

Councilman Hance asked if the City needed the dedication. Wasn’t that the back of the
sidewalk?

Ms. Laughlin answered it is actually 8" Street. Bob Thibault went out and surveyed the corners.

Bob Thibault showed the discrepancy on the overhead screen. They thought the 10’ had been
dedicated in the past but they could not find a record.

*k A motion was made by Councilman Hance, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
approve the First Amendment to the Contract of Purchase and Sale between Bailey &
Associates and the City of Elko for APN: 001-066-005, and the northeasterly 10-foot
dedication on that.
: The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

C. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Performance/Maintenance
Agreement for subdivision improvements associated with the Great Basin Estates
Phase 3 subdivision, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Code 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed and filed an
agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision
improvements, included stipulations on the timeframe for when those
improvements are to be completed, and to post a performance guarantee in
accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-22. As part of the conditions of approval the
Planning Commission recommended that the agreement be approved by the City
Council. The Planning Commission also recommended that the Developer shall
enter into the agreement within 30 days of the City Council’s approval of the final
plat. MR

NO ACTION
VI. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

A. First reading of Ordinance No. 839, an ordinance amending Title 2, Chapters
2,3,4,5,6,7, 8 & 13 of the Elko City Code entitled “Building Regulations” by
adding 2018 International code, and corresponding amendments, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On January 9, 2018, Council directed Staff to initiate the adoptions of the 2018
International Building Codes and initiate a Business Impact Statement. On May
14, 2019 Council found that Ordinance No. 839 does not impose a direct and
significant economic burden on a business or directly restrict the formation,
operation or expansion of a business. KW

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 11 of 14



Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk, explained there have not been any changes since the Business
Impact Statement was approved. Mr. Kimble from WC3 was present to answer any questions.

Councilman Stone left at 5:54.

Chris Kimble, 908 W Gordon Ave. Ste. 3, Layton, Utah, gave a summary of the changes. This
will put the City on the same codes as most of the state. The State Fire Marshal will be adopting
the 2018 codes on January 1.

b A motion was made by Councilman Hance, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein,
to conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 839, and direct staff to set the matter for
Second Reading, Public Hearing and Possible Adoption.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. First reading of Ordinance No. 840, an ordinance amending Title 6, Chapter 1, of
the Elko City Code entitled “Fire Code”, and direct Staff to set the matter for
public hearing, second reading, and possible adoption, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On February 26, 2019, Council approved the initiation on Ordinance No. 840 and
directed Staff to complete a Business Impact Statement. On May 14, 2019,
Council found that Ordinance No. 840 does not impose a direct and significant
economic burden on a business or directly restrict the formation, operation or
expansion of a business. KW

Ms. Woodridge explained this was also attached to the Business Impact Statement and there
have been no changes to it since then. The biggest difference in this code is that we have never
had amendments to the International Fire Code. Mr. Holmes was part of a task force with 25
other cities and counties that came up with northern Nevada specific amendments that were
added to this.

Mr. Kimble highlighted some of the changes to the Fire Code.

** A motion was made by Councilman Hance, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein,
to conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 840, and direct staff to set the matter for
Second Reading, Public Hearing and Possible Adoption.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
VIII. REPORTS

A. Mayor and City Council
Councilman Hance said he is watching river. He noticed the drainage is
constricted in a few places near the Westbound Amtrak.
Dennis Strickland said they have been paying close attention, and they
have had crews out last Friday afternoon in the thunderstorms. They are
predicting river to spike. If it hits the 7° mark we will start seeing water

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 12 of 14



mo 0

Q2

5/28/2019

appear at First and Water, 6" and Front. Today the crews put bags in and are
prepared if the water spikes.

Councilman Schmidtlein reported he will be gone for the next Council
Meeting.

City Manager — Legislative Update

Curtis Calder reported the Legislature final day is June 3" unless they
call for a special session. We will know where we stand on some major
legislation by the next Council Meeting.

Mayor Keener and Council thanked Mr. Calder for his work on the
budget. Council appreciates how he stepped up and took care of it.

Mr. Calder said he had help from Candi and her staff. They aren’t
through the woods yet. They still need to get the final changes to the State but
the City is in a good financial situation.

Assistant City Manager
Utilities Director
Public Works

Dennis Strickland said he and his Street Superintendent attended the
American Public Works Association National Snow Conference. It was held in
Salt Lake City this year. They both achieved the Winter Maintenance
Supervisor Certification Program. They will keep an eye on river. They are set
to start paving and they are hoping for better weather to get started.

Airport Manager

Jim Foster reported the AIP 50 Project received two bids that came in
$300,000 over the engineer’s estimate. He is working with the FAA and
Jviation on the funding. He is confident we will receive money needed to
complete project, and if not, they are value-engineering the project.

City Attorney
Fire Chief

Matt Griego stated they just got a report of a fire at the Living Stones
Church. It sounds like it was isolated to a fixture there. He will give further
reports as he hears more.

Police Chief

Chief Reed reported the newest officer has graduated from the POST
Academy last week with good marks and has moved back to Elko. Lt. Palhegyi
will graduate from the National Academy next week.

City Clerk — Non-Compliant Lodging Businesses (Transient Lodging Tax)

Kelly Wooldridge updated Council on the Shilo Inn, and Thunderbird
room tax issue. She has been in touch with the CFO of Shilo Inn. She will try
fo schedule a meeting with Curtis, ECVA and legal counsel to talk about the
next steps. The Thunderbird has not sent any documentation and she hasn't
received a payment since December. Last week she attended the CDBG
Grant Training in Carson City. There are some things that would qualify for
the grant in Elko.

City Planner

Mayor Keener said we have talked about some of the problems related to
real estate in the foreclosure process. He wondered if she could do a couple
tours of the problem properties.

City Council Minutes Page 13 of 14



Cathy Laughlin said the one correspondence she sent him had pictures of
garbage in the back yard. It finally did go vacant and now you can really see
the trash in the back yard that had been blocked previously by trailers.

Development Manager
Administrative Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director

James Wiley reported they are getting close to the Pool project deadline.
Framing was finished up and Monday they will be working on metal roofing,
window and doors. He is anticipating the pool opening June 17.

Councilwoman Simons pointed out that there will be 3 sessions instead of
4 for swimming lessons this year. She questioned the fiscal impact that will
have.

Mr. Wiley said he hasn’t dug down deep into the issue but he thought it
was due to timing and trying to get them into the summer. They may try to
accommodate more children per session. The situation at the Golf Course is a
little tense but the security system has been installed.

0. Civil Engineer
Bob Thibault reported the Fire Department driveway is underway but has
been delayed due to all of the rain. The Sports Complex was expected to start
June 3 but the water is high and we will push that another two weeks.
P. Building Official
Jeff Ford reported the new opening date for our newest hotel will be in
October.

ZZr

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN
There were no public comments.

There being no further business, Mayor Reece Keener adjourned the meeting.

Mayor Reece Keener Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk

5/28/2019 City Council Minutes Page 14 of 14



Agenda Item LA.

A

10.
11.
12.
13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Brief presentation and possible acceptance of a renewal proposal from Nevada
Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL), and approval of invoice for payment from
FY2019/2020 Funds in the amount of $464,971.41, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019
Agenda Category: PRESENTATION
Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information: As a member of the Insurance Pool, the City of Elko owns a
share of the equity that forms the basis for its financial strength.

Your agenda packet includes an overview of coverage offered for the following fiscal
year. The City of Elko’s total program costs for FY 2019/2020 are $464,971.41,
representing a 9.09% increase over FY 2018/2019. CC

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $464,971.41
Budget amount available: $464,971.41
Fund name: Various

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Program Costs Quotation;
Member Coverage Summary; Invoice

Recommended Motion: Approve the renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency
Insurance Pool (POOL), and approve invoice for payment from FY 2019/2020
Funds in the amount of $464,971.41.

Prepared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review: N/A
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: LP Insurance
Fax: 775.473.9288

Wayne Carlson
Fax: 775.883.7398

Created on 5/29/2019 City Council Meeting Page 1 0of 1



Insurance Services

City of Elko
2019 - 2020 PROGRAM COSTS QUOTATION

The Program Costs are reflective of members’ exposure to loss in conjunction with loss
experience. Exposure simply means total insured property values, expenditures, payroll, number
of autos, etc. The information provided is warranted to be true and accurate by an official of
each member.
The City of Elko’s annual program costs and comparisons are as follows:

2017-2018  2018-2019  2019-2020
NPAIP Total Costs $409,330.74 $415,448.56 $456,971.41
Additional Agency Service Compensation $ 8,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $8,000.00
Environmental Liability Coverage INCLUDED INCLUDED INCLUDED
Total Program Costs $417,330.74 $423,448.56 $464,971.41

Maintenance Deductible: $5,000 applies to each and every loss with the exception of
Environmental Liability.

Note: Acceptance of this renewal constitutes official acceptance of the pricing and approval for
payment. Payment is due immediately upon receipt of invoice, but no later than July 8, 2019.




City of Elko

9.09% ($41,522.85) increase in premium

4.8% (S5,816,114) increase in the total insured value of
the property

4.9% (5605,317) payroll increase

11 vehicle increase

Reinsurance price firming due to natural disasters (CRL
casualty=33.80%) (Lloyds of London property=4.48%)
(PRM property=22.55%)

Adverse development of combined POOL member
losses



Insurance Services

Client Service Agreement
Property & Casualty

This Client Service Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this First Day of July
2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between LP Insurance Services (Agency), having an office
located at 555 5th St; Elko, NV 89801, and City of Elko(“Client”).

WHEREAS, LP Insurance Services is duly licensed to engage in the insurance business for the
purposes set forth herein, and;

WHEREAS, Client desires to engage the services of LP Insurance Services upon the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained
herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. LINES OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

This Agreement is entered into with respect to the Property and Casualty lines of insurance
coverage offered by Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (NPAIP) and other unrelated
lines of Property and Casualty lines of insurance for which Client agrees to name LP
Insurance Services as its Broker of Record.

LP Insurance Services agrees to provide to Client the following insurance services:

Risk Management

2. SERVICES
+ Conduct exposure analysis

» Analyze current insurance program and make recommendations for program
enhancements and potential savings

« Review coverage unrelated to NPAIP if requested by Client.

Marketing
+ Develop underwriting submission

+ Place and implement selected lines of coverage, i.e Airport Liability, at Clients
request.

ph (77599050000 ~ fax {775) 473-9288



Insurance Services

Ongoing
» Consult on special projects

+ Review policies for accuracy prior to delivery.
« Monitoring losses and loss control issues.

» Proactively monitor and facilitate claims handling and procedures

The above-referenced services shall be rendered by LP Insurance Services to Client pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement.

3. COMPENSATION

LP Insurance Services will be compensated for the services outlined in this agreement
through the payment of an administration fee by the Client to LP Insurance Services and
commissions paid on insurance premiums by selected insurance companies to LP
Insurance Services.

DESCRIPTION Agency Services Commission(s) Fixed Monthly
Compensation (%) Cost(s) ($)
Average of 7% of
insurance
Agency Compensation $8,000.00 premiums only. $0.00

Contingent, supplemental, or bonus commissions

Some of the insurance companies LP Insurance Services represents may pay it additional
incentive commission, sometimes referred to as contingent, supplemental or bonus
commissions, which may be based on the total volume of business we sell for them, and/or
the growth rate of that business, retention rate, claims loss ratio, or other factors considering
our entire book of business with an insurance company for a designated period of time.
Such additional commissions would be in addition to any other compensation LP Insurance
Services may receive. This is not applicable for the NPAIP agents.

4. BROKERAGE INTERMEDIARIES

LP Insurance Services may utilize the services of other intermediaries, such as wholesale
brokers, excess and surplus lines brokers and underwriting managers, to assist in the
marketing of Client insurance coverage, when in LP Insurance Services professional
judgment those services are necessary

0000 ~ Tax (7751 473-9288




Insurance Services

. TERM AND TERMINATION

The term of this Agreement shall commence on 7/1/2019 and shall terminate one (1) year
thereafter. The term may be extended by mutual written agreement of the parties. In the
event of termination, LP Insurance Services will assist Client in arranging a smooth
transition process. However, LP Insurance Services obligation and the obligation of its
affiliates to provide services to Client will cease upon the effective date of termination,
unless otherwise agreed in writing.

Notwithstanding the term of this Agreement, either party shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement upon 90 days’ prior notice to the other. In the event of termination by the
Customer prior to expiration, LP Insurance Services Agency Services compensation will be
deemed fully earned at inception.

. ACCURACY OF INFORMATION

LP Insurance Services ability to provide Client with the services outlined in paragraph 2
above is conditioned upon LP Insurance Services receipt of accurate and timely information
from Client. LP Insurance Services will not independently verify or authenticate information
provided by or on behalf of you. You shall be solely responsible for the accuracy and
completeness of such information and other documentation furnished to LP Insurance
Services.

. BOOKS AND RECORDS .

Client is entitled to copies of reports prepared by LP Insurance Services hereunder,
contracts between Client and its carriers/administrators to the extent such contracts are in
LP Insurance Services possession and control, and communications between LP Insurance
Services and Client’s insurance carriers and employee benefits providers to the extent such
books and records are maintained by LP Insurance Services with regard to its performance
under this Agreement

O - fax {775 473-9288



Insurance Services

8. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject
matter contained herein, superseding all prior agreements, understandings, and
negotiations with respect to such matters. This Agreement may be modified or otherwise
amended and the observance of any term of this Agreement may be waived only if such
modification, amendment, or waiver is in writing and signed by the party to be charged with
same. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties’ respective
successors. Neither party shall have any liability for any failure or delay in performance of its
obligations under this Agreement because of circumstances beyond its reasonable control,
including, without limitation, acts of God, fires, floods, earthquakes, acts of war or terrorism,
civil disturbances, sabotage, accidents, unusually severe weather, governmental actions,
power failures, computer/network viruses that are not preventable through generally
available retail products, catastrophic hardware failures, or attacks on its server. The parties
further agree that neither party shall have any liability for indirect, special, punitive,
consequential, or incidental damages, including, without limitation, loss of profits.

9. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Nevada.

10. SELECTION OF ISSUING INSURANCE COMPANY

LP Insurance Services has no ownership interest in and is not under common control with
the insurance company that is issuing the lines of insurance coverage described in this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands on the date and year first
above written for the purposes set forth in this Agreement:

LP Insurance Services City of Elko
Signature Signature
Print Name Print Name
Title Title




INVOICE

Customer: City of Elko
Insurance Services — Moy 317019
Customer John Smales & Dain Uriarte
Service iohn.smales@Ipins.net
dain.uriarte@Ipins.net
Page e lofl

Payment Information

City of Elko -

1751 College Avenue Invoice Summary | POOL Total Costs

Elko, NV 89801 Payment Amount | $

Due Date 07/08/2019
Customer: City of Elko
Invoice Effective Transaction Description Amount
7/1/2019 Renewal POOL Total Costs $456,971.41
Renewal Agency Services $8,000.00
Compensation

Total Due: | $464,971.41
PLEASE MAKE PAYMENT PAYABLE TO: LP Insurance Services LLC

Due Date: 07/08/2019

LP Insurance Services, LLC
300 E. 2P St., Suite 1300
Reno. NV 89501 May 31,2015




CITY OF ELKO

$600,000.00

$500,000.00

$400,000.00

$300,000.00

$200,000.00

$100,000.00

$0.00

2019 NPAIP Total Program Cost

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

===

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019




CITY OF ELKO

$140,000,000

$120,000,000

$100,000,000

$80,000,000

$60,000,000

$40,000,000

$20,000,000

$0

2019 Total Insured Values

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019




CITY OF ELKO

14,000,000

12,000,000

10,000,000

8,000,000

6,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000

2019 Total Payroll

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008 2009 2010 2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019




CITY OF ELKO

1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

2019 Total Incurred

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019




CITY OF ELKO
2019 Officer Count

45

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

2002




CITY OF ELKO

2019 Auto Count

180

160

140

2014 2015

2013




NEVADA PUBLIC AGENCY
INSURANCE POOL MEMBER
COVERAGE SUMMARY

Prepared For:

Elko, City of
Prepared By:

LP Insurance Services, Inc.

This summary is intended for reference only. For specific terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions, please
refer to the POOL Coverage Form edition July 1, 2019.



Dear POOL Member:

Thank you for your renewed commitment to the Nevada Public Agency
Insurance Pool (POOL). In 1987, four Nevada counties formed their own risk
sharing pool and now over thirty years later, the vast majority of Nevada’s rural
public entities remain committed to each other and the mission of their risk pool
organization.

We are pleased to provide this Member Coverage Summary for your review. We
continue to excel and provide an unparalleled level of service to our members.
Our mission seeks to help members manage their risks so they can serve the
public effectively.

The POOL Board is comprised of dedicated, hardworking, and ethical Member
leaders focused on public risk management. They continue to do a superb job of
representing the interests of the Member-owners of POOL.

Our members continue to see great value in being part of the POOL because of
the extensive services, thus membership retention remains strong. We
encourage you to discuss the services we offer with your insurance agent, a
valued partner in the POOL program. Details on the financial performance and
the services we offer are available on our website at www.poolpact.com.

If you have any questions, please call us at (775) 885-7475.

Sincerely,

Wayne Carlson
Executive Director
Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool



NEVADA PUBLIC AGENCY INSURANCE POOL (POOL)

COVERAGE SUMMARY
RENEWAL COVERAGE NAMED MAINTENANCE
PROPOSAL PERIOD ASSURED DEDUCTIBLE
07/01/2019 — Elko, City of $5,000
07/01/2020
Standard Time

PROPERTY LIMITS

Blanket Limit per schedule of locations on file with POOL subject to a maximum
limit of $300,000,000 per loss.

The following sub-limits apply to Section V. C. Extensions of Property Coverage:
Accounts Receivable $5,000,000 per loss

Arson Reward

10% up to $25,000 per loss

Earthquake

$150,000,000 aggregate

Flood

$150,000,000 aggregate

$25,000,000 aggregate - Flood Zone A

Equipment Breakdown

$100,000,000 per loss

e Loss of Income &
Extra Expense

included

¢ Hazardous Substance
Coverage

$250,000 per loss

¢ Spoilage Coverage

$250,000 per loss

¢ Data Restoration

$100,000 per loss

Expediting Expenses

$25,000 per loss

Unintentional Errors and
Omissions

$5,000,000 per loss

Money and Securities

$500,000 per loss

Transmission Facilities

$100,000 per loss

Vehicle Replacement

Per Attachment E, if applicable




LIABILITY LIMITS
The Limits of Liability are as follows:

Combined Single $10,000,000 Each Event/Each Member
Limit
Each Member Annual Aggregate Limit: $10,000,000

Liability Limits are subject to sub-limits

Includes Auto Liability, General Liability, Personal Injury Liability,
Employment Practices Liability, Law Enforcement Liability and Wrongful

Acts Liability

CYBER SECURITY EVENT AND PRIVACY RESPONSE EXPENSE

COVERAGE LIMITS
The Limits of Liability are as follows:

Per Cyber Security Event $3,000,000 | Each Member/Annual
including Privacy Response Aggregate
Expense '

ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY COVERAGE
The Limits of Liability are as follows:

Coverage A | Third Party Claims for Bodily Injury, Property Damage or
Remediation Expense
Coverage B | First Party Remediation Expense
Coverage C | Emergency Response Expense
Coverage D | Business Interruption
COVERAGE | DEDUCTIBLE | EACH INCIDENT | AGGREGATE
LIMIT LIMIT
AB,C $25,000 $2,000,000 $10,000,000
COVERAGE | DEDUCTIBLE BUSINESS BUSINESS
INTERRUPTION INTERRUPTION
LIMIT (Days) LIMIT ($)
D 3 Days - 365 $2,000,000




MEMBER CONTRIBUTION:

TOTAL COST: $427,086.69
AGENT COMPENSATION: $29,884.72
TOTAL PROGRAM COST $456,971.41
INCLUDING ALL SERVICES:

This summary is intended for reference only. For specific terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions,
please refer to the POOL Coverage Form edition July 1, 2019.



Programs and Services available to POOL/PACT Members:
RISK MANAGEMENT

Training

POOL/PACT provides extensive E-Learning and other training. Here are some samples, but
check out www.poolpact.com for more: Safe Driving Techniques * Blood Borne Pathogens ¢
Ethics « Nevada Open Meeting Law * POOL/PACT 101 « Positive Governance

Risk Management On-Site Programs

Risk Control Program Analysis ¢ Infrared Thermography (IRT) « Safety Policies and
Procedures Review * Site Surveys « OSHA Compliance Assistance * Safety and Loss Control
Committees Review and Development « Traffic Safety Cones ¢ Improved Security Systems
On-site Respirator Fit and Fire Extinguisher Training * Swimming Pool Safety Training and
Inspections * School and Bus Safety Training. * Accident Investigation Claims Analysis ¢
Hazard Communication Program Review and Development

Law Enforcement and Fire Protection

On-line Law Enforcement training, policies, and best practices from the Legal Liability Risk
Management Institute « Fire and EMS training, policies, and best practices from
TargetSolutions.

Risk Management Grant Program

Grant applications online for innovative and effective grants to mitigate or eliminate risk to
employees and citizens * Five, $2,000 risk management grants are available to each member
each year.

24-7-365 Workers Comp Nurse Triage Program
PACT members are eligible to use our innovative and streamed lined WC information and
reporting system for non-life threatening on-the-job injuries.

Cyber-Security Assessments
Passive Network Assessments, training, and best practices.

MSDSonline

OSHA and state compliance with safety data sheet management and updates are available
online. '

For additional information contact Marshall Smith, POOL/PACT Risk Manager, (775) 885-
7475

email: marshallsmith@poolpact.com website: www.poolpact.com



Prégrams and Services available to POOL/PACT Members:

HUMAN RESOURCES

A variety of services are offered through POOL/PACT HR. We work with each
member individually to address their specific HR-related needs and to reduce

liability. Basic services include:

Consultation with members to manage and resolve critical employment-related issues
to include identifying options, providing step-by-step guidance, monitoring progress,
and answering questions.

Instructor-led training courses and workshops such as: Essential Management Skills;
Anti-Bullying and Harassment; Dealing with Irate Customers, Effective Communication
Skills

On-line training courses

On-site assessment of member’'s HR practices with recommendations.

Communication issued as “Alerts” to notify members when a significant HR-related law
or practice has changed.

On-site HR Briefings tailored to specific needs/requests of members.
Sample personnel policies which may be adopted for use by members.

Over 200 sample job descriptions and numerous HR forms that can be tailored for use
by members.

Legislative Updates after each Legislative Session and changes to sample HR policies

Quarterly webinars in partnership with Resources for Living, employee assistance
program (EAP).

HR Scholarships to assist member HR representatives in attaining natlonally
recognized HR certifications.

Annual HR Seminar providing HR representatives and CEOs valuable information on
communication, leadership, and legal updates.

For additional information contact Stacy Norbeck, POOL/PACT Human‘Resources Manager,
(775) 885-7475 email: stacynorbeck@poolpact.com website: www.poolpact.com







Counties:
Churchill County
Douglas County
Elko County
‘Esmeralda County
Eureka County
Humboldt County
Lander County
Lincoln County
Lyon County
Mineral County
Nye County
Pershing County
Storey County
White Pine County

Towns:

Town of Gardnerville
Town of Genoa

Town of Minden

Town of Pahrump

Town of Round Mountain
Town of Tonopah

School Districts:

Carson City School District
Churchill County School District
Douglas County Schoot District
Elko County School District
Esmeralda County School District
Eureka County School District
Humboldt County School District
Lander County School District
Lincoln County School District
Lyon County School District
Mineral County School District
Nye County School District
Pershing County School District
Storey County School District

NPAIP Membership

Cities:

Boulder City

City of Caliente

City of Carlin

City of Elko

City of Ely

City of Fernley

City of Lovelock
City of Wells

City of West Wendover
City of Winnemucca
City of Yerington

Fire Districts:

Mt. Charleston Fire Protection District
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
North Lyon County Fire Protection District
Pahranagat Valley Fire District

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District
Washoe County Fire Suppression

White Pine Fire District

Others:

Central Nevada Historical Society

Central Nevada Regional Water Authority
County Fiscal Officers Association of Nevada
Douglas County Redevelopment Agency
Elko Central Dispatch

Elko Convention & Visitors Authority
Humboldt River Basin Water Authority
Mineral County Housing Authority

Nevada Association of Counties

Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction
of the V & T Railway

Nevada League of Cities

Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc.

Nevada Rural Housing Authority

Regional Transportation Commission of
Washoe County

Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency
U.S. Board of Water Commissioners
Virginia City Tourism Convention

Western Nevada Regional Youth Center
White Pine County Tourism

Special Districts:

Alamo Water & Sewer District

Amargosa Library District

Beatty Library District

Beatty Water & Sanitation District

Canyon General Improvement District
Carson-Truckee Water Conservancy District
Carson Water Subconservancy District
Churchill County Mosquito, Vector

and Weed Control District

Coyote Springs General Improvement District
Douglas County Mosquito District

Douglas County Sewer

East Fork Swimming Pool District

Elko County Agricultural Association

Elko TV District

Fernley Swimming Pool District

Gardnerville Ranchos General Improvement District
Gerlach General Improvement District
Humboldt General Hospital

Incline Village General Improvement District
Indian Hills General Improvement District
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Lakeridge General Improvement District
Lincoln County Water District

Logan Creek Estates General Improvement District
Lovelock Meadows Water District

Marla Bay General Improvement District
Mason Valley Swimming Pool District

Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District
Moapa Valley Water District

Nevada Association of Conservation Districts
Nevada Tahoe Conservation District
Northern Nye County Hospital District
Pahrump Library District

Palomino Valley General Improvement District
Pershing County Water Conservation District
Sierra Estates General Improvement District
Silver Springs General Improvement District
Silver Springs Stagecoach Hospital

Skyland General Improvement District
Smoky Valley Library District

Southern Nevada Area Communication Council
Southern Nevada Health District

Stagecoach General Improvement District
Sun Valley General Improvement District
Tahoe Douglas District

Topaz Ranch General Improvement District
Tahoe Reno Industrial General Improvement District
Tonopah Library District

Walker Basin Conservancy

Walker River Irrigation District

Washoe County Water Conservation District
West Wendover Recreation District

Western Nevada Development District

White Pine Television District #1

Zephyr Cove General Improvement District

10



INVOICE

City of Elko

nsurance Services

May 31, 2019
John Smales & Dain Uriarte

john.smales@Ipins.net

dain.uriarte@Ipins.net
l1of1

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801

POOL Total Costs
S
07/08/2019

Please detach and return with payment

Customer: C{ity of Elko

%

7/1/2019 Renewal | POOL Total Costs $456,971.41
Renewal Agency Services $8,000.00
Compensation

Total Due: $464,971.41

PLEASE MAKE PAYMENT PAYABLE TO: LP Insurance Services LLC

Due Date: 07/08/2019

LP Insurance Services, LLC
300 E. 2P St., Suite 1300

, May 31, 2019
Reno, NV 89501 ay

LP Insurance Services, inc.



Agenda Item 1.B.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Presentation by the Nevada Rural Housing Authority, and matters related
thereto. INFORMATION ITEM ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019
Agenda Category: PRESENTATION
Time Required: 20 Minutes
Background Information:
Budget Impact Statement:

Appropriation Required:

Budget amount available:

Fund name:
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information:
Recommended Motion:
Prepared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 5/00/19 Council Agenda Action Sheet

Page 1 of 1



Nevada State Department of Business & Industry
Distribution of F ral Tax Exempt Private Activity Bonding Authori A
For Use in Calendar Year 2019 $318,611,160.00 =Total statewide allocation
$159,305,580.00 =Local jurisdictions allocation Total
Based upon estimates from the Nevada State Demographer, Nevada Department of Taxation
Counties & Incorporated 2018 Percentage of State
Cities Population Estimate** Population
County Totals Jurisdiction Totals l Total for Distribution $ 159,305,580
(Carson City 56,057 56,057 1.83338% $ 2,920,671.60
Churchill County 25,628
Fallon 9,125 0.29844% $ 475,429.09
Unincorporated County 16,503 0.53974% $ 859,836.30
Clark County 2,251,175 o
Boulder City 15,887 0.51959% $ 82774158 |
Henderson 310,244 10.14671% $ 16,164,276.33
Las Vegas 644,113 21.06609% $ 33,559,458.11
Mesquite 22,557 0.73774% $ 1,175,260.70
North Las Vegas 248,701 8.13391% $ 12,957,774.17
Unincorporate County 1,009,673 33.02194% $ 52,605,798.59
Douglas County 49,070 49,070 1.60486% $ 2,556,636.20
Elko County 54,326
Carlin 2,613 0.08546% $ 136,142.05
Elko 21,158 0.69198% $ 1,102,370.26
Wells 1,365 0.04464% $ 71,118.98
West Wendover 4,406 0.14410% $ 229,560.61
Unincorporated County 24,784 0.81058% $ 1,291,291.45
Esmeralda County 969 969 0.03169% $ 50,486.66
Eureka County 1,951 1,951 0.06381% $ 101,650.65
Humboldt County 16,989
Winnemucca 7.856 0.25694% $ 409,311.88
Unincorporated County 9,133 0.29870% $ 475,845.90
Lander County 6,065 6,065 0.19836% $ 315,997.52
Lincoln County 5,255
Caliente 1,084 0.03545% $ 56,478.37
Unincorporated County 4,171 0.13641% $ 217,316.68
|Lyon County 55,551
Fernley 19,790 0.64724% $ 1,031,094.97
Yerington 3,424 0.11198% $ 178,396.62
Unincorporated County 32,337 1.05760% $ 1,684,816.48
|Mineral County ' 4,690 4,690 0.15339% $ 244,357.53
Nye County 47,856 47,856 1.56516% $ 2,493,384.59
Pershing County 6,858
Lovelock 1,965 0.06427 % $ 102,380.07
Unincorporated County 4,893 0.16003% $ 254,934.19
IStorey County 4,227 4,227 0.13825% $ 220,234.38
Washoe County 460,237
Reno 248,806 8.13735% $ 12,963,244.86
Sparks 100,140 3.27514% $ 5,217,476.03
Unincorporated County 111,291 3.63984% $ 5,798,463.39
White Pine County 10,678
Ely 4,149 0.13570% $ 216,170.44
Unincorporated County 6,529 0.21353% $ 340,172.77
Totals = 3,057,582 3,057,582 100.0000% $ 159,305,580.00
I Notice 2019-19
**State Demographer's ‘Governor Certified Population of Nevada Counties, Cities and Towns 2018’ Saved in Excel as: 2019 Volume Cap Distribution & Demographer Info
















Agenda Item IIL.C.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible award of the Public Works Department
Preventive Maintenance Project 2019, to apply Micro Slurry Seal to select City
streets, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: June 11, 2019
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: S5 Minutes
Background Information: At their April 9, 2019, meeting, Council authorized Staff to
solicit bids for the Preventive Maintenance Project 2019. Bids were received until
3:00 p.m., on May 30, 2019. DS
Budget Information: Estimated total cost of project $450,000.00

Appropriation Required: $450,000.00

Budget amount available: $550,000.00 in the FY 19/20 Budget

Fund name: General Fund: Public Works Department
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: A Bid Tabulation is included in the packet.
Recommended Motion: Award the bid to Sierra Nevada Construction for the Public
Works Department Street Maintenance Project 2019, in the amount of
$404,007.00.
Prepared By: Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Paul Algerio, Streets Superintendent
palgerio@elkocitynv.gov

Alex Faust, Sierra Nevada Construction
afaust @snc.biz

Eric Reimshiisel, American Pavement Preservation
ericr @americanpave.com

Created on 5/31/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 1



MICRO SLURRY PROJECT 2019
BID TABULATION
Bids Opened May 30, 2019

SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION

AMERICAN PAVEMENT PRESERVATION

ITEM . ITEm S _ UNIT|QUANTITY UNITPRICE = TOTAL |QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL
1 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 1 $26,000.00 $26,000.00
2 Microsurface Type 3 SY | 219,301 $1.60 $350,881.60 | 219,301 $1.94 $425,443.94
3 Downtown Corridor Microsurface Type 3 Sy 10,770 $1.90 $20,463.00 10,770 $3.28 $35,325.60
4 Placement and Maintenance of Traffic Control LS 1 $22,622.40 $22,662.40 1 $24,000.00 $24,000.00
TOTAL $404,007.00 TOTAL $510,769.54




Agenda Item I11.D.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review and possible award for the custodial services at the airport terminal,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019

Agenda Category: APPPROPRIATION

Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information: Bids for the Terminal Custodial Services were opened on
Friday, May 31, 2019. Staff received one (1) bid from Royal Pane Janitorial who is
the current Custodian at the airport terminal. Staff would recommend signing a
Two (2) Year Contract with the provision of a One (1) Year Contract Extension

should both parties agree for a total of Three (3) Years. JF

Budget Impact Statement:

Appropriation Required:  $20,400.00

Budget amount available: $20,400.00

Fund name:
Business Impact Statement: Required/Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Copy of Contract and Scope of Work
Recommended Motion: Move to award at Two (2) Year Custodial Contract for
custodial services at the airport terminal to Royal Pane Janitorial at an annual cost
of $20,400.00 per year with the provision of a One (1) Year Extension should both
parties agree.
Prepared By: Jim Foster, Airport Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:
Council Agenda Distribution: Royal Pane Janitorial

Attention: Susanne Ellingson
susanneellingson @gmail.com

Created on 5/00/19 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0f 1



CONTRACT FOR CUSTODIAL SERVICES
ELKO REGIONAL AIRPORT

On this __ day of , 2019 (hereinafter the "Effective
Date"), the City of Elko, Nevada, a municipal corporation and political subdivision
of the State of Nevada (“the City”) and (“Contractor”),
agree to the terms and Tonditions set forth below: ‘

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to perform custodial services as an
independent contractor for the City under the terms and conditions set forth in this
Contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in
this Contract, it is agreed by and between the Contractor and the City, as follows:

L.
DESCRIPTION OF WORK

The work to be performed by Contractor includes all services generally
performed by a custodian at the Elko Regional Airport, to include janitorial services,
and all matters described in the Scope of Work attached hereto at Exhibit 1
(hereinafter the "Work"). Contractor will not engage in any activities contrary to the
instructions of the City.

Contrastat Lty Page 1 of 11




IL
TERM

The Term of this Contract shall be two (2) year(s). The Work shall commence
upon signature hereof by both parties and shall continue until termination.

IIL.
PAYMENT

The City will pay the Contractor the sum of $1700.00 per month for
performing the Work, to be prorated as appropriate for any partially completed
month upon termination. Contractor shall provide a monthly invoice to the Airport
Director by hand delivering a copy to the Airport Manager's office at 975 Terminal
Way, Elko, Nevada, by the 10" day of the month for Work haerformed during the
previous month. The City shall have no obligation to pay for any Work performed
unless and until an invoice has been delivered to the Airport Director in accordance
with this Section III and interest shall not accrue on any unpaid amounts.

IV.
RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES

The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created
by this Contract. The City is only interested in the results to be achieved, and the
conduct and control of the work will lie solely with the Contractor. Contractor is
not to be considered an agent or employee of the City for any purpose, and the
employees of the Contractor, if any, are not entitled to any of the benefits that the
City provides to its employees. It is understood that the City does not agree to use
the Contractor exclusively. The parties agree that Contractor is not an employee for
purposes of NRS 616A through 616D, which are the Nevada Revised Statutes
governing industrial insurance.

Page 2 of 11




V.
LIABILITY

The work to be performed under this Contract will be performed entirely at
Contractor's risk and Contractor assumes all responsibility for the condition of the
premises or any equipment used in the performance of this Contract. Contractor
agrees to hold harmless and release the City from any and all claims arising from or
in relation to the services provided under or activities related to this Contract, to
include acts or omissions of third parties. Contractor further agrees to indemnify
and defend the City against any and all such claims.

VL
CANCELLATION AND EXTENSION

Notwithstanding any other provision herein contain, the City may terminate
this Contract for any reason or no reason upon thirty (30) days prior written notice
to the Contractor. The parties may extend the Term of this Contract for any period
of time by mutual written agreement, provided, in the event the Term of this Contract
is extended, all other provisions of this Contract not otherwise modified by written
mutual agreement shall remain in full force and effect, further provided, that if a
new term is not specified in the written agreement extending the Contract, the Term
of the extension period shall be one (1) year from the date of the last signature on
the written agreement. The one year contract extension provision can be renewed a
total of one time (1). The custodial services contract may not be renewed beyond
a three (3) year period. Upon completion of year three (3), the new contract must
be re-opened for public participation following current City of Elko open bidding
procedures. ~

VIL
CONTRACTOR TO FURNISH ALL LABOR AND MATERIALS

Unless otherwise specifically agreed to in writing or as provided in this
Section VII, Contractor shall furnish, at Contractor's own expense, all labor, material
(including cleaning products), equipment and other items necessary to carry out the
terms of this Contract. All cleaning products must be approved by the City before

e Page 3 of 11




use. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City will supply all paper towels, toilet
paper, sanitary toilet covers, hand soap, air fresheners and trash bags required for
use at the Elko Regional Airport.

VIII.
TERMINATION FOR UNSATISFACTORY SERVICES

The actual performance and supervision of all work hereunder shall be by
Contractor, but the City shall at all times have the right to judge whether such Work
is being performed by Contractor in accordance with the provisions hereof. In the
event the City determines that Contractor's services are unsatisfactory for any reason,
the City shall have the right to immediately terminate this Contract without prior
notice to Contractor at the City's sole discretion, provided, the City shall exercise
due diligence in notifying the Contractor of the termination as soon as reasonably
practicable.

IX.
PAYMENT OF TAXES. ASSESSMENTS, LIENS AND THE LIKE

Contractor agrees to pay any and all taxes, fees or assessments of whatever
nature or kind are levied, required or imposed as a consequence of the Work
performed. Contractor shall pay in full for all labor performed or material furnished
to City property, and shall keep City property, free and clear of all materialmens,
laborers and mechanics liens and all other liens, security interests and encumbrances.
If any such lien or liens shall be filed against City property, or any part thereof,
Contractor shall have the right to contest any such lien or liens, but shall, within
thirty (30) days after the filing of such liens, discharge every lien filed against City
property by bonding or otherwise.

X.
WORK PERFORMED AT CONTRACTOR'S RISK

Contractor shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the
safety of the work hereunder. All work shall be done at Contractor's risk.

Page 4 of 11




XL
INSURANCE

Contractor agrees to purchase insurance or otherwise arrange at its own
expense and to keep such insurance in force at all times this Contract is in effect, as
follows:

A.  Workers Compensation Insurance covering all persons engaged in the
performance of Work on City property.

B. Comprehensive General Public Liability Insurance against claims for
bodily injury or death of any person and property damage arising out of or resulting
from Contractor's activities and the use of City property in connection, with
performance of the Work. T Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate. The City shall be
named as an additional insured on any such policy of insurance. Contractor shall
furnish to the City proof that such insurance has been obtained and is in force.

C.  General Vehicle Liability Insurance against claims for injury or death
of any person and property damage arising out of or resulting from Contractor's
operation of any motor vehicle used in connection with the activities contemplated
herein, to include travel to, from and at the Elko Regional Airport. Such insurance
shall be in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in
the aggregate. This policy shall include vehicles operated by Contractor and
Contractors agents, employees and contractors. The City shall be named as an
additional insured on any such policy of insurance. Contractor shall fumish to the
City proof that such insurance has been obtained and is in force.

D. The City shall be provided with copies of all insurance policies
required under this Contract.

E. The foregoing insurance may be part of a blanket policy.

Conictar | Cly Page 5 of 11




XII.
BACKGROUND AND SECURITY CHECK

Contractor shall be required to pass a background and criminal history record
check in order to obtain the required security clearance in accordance with the
Airport Security Plan and TSA CFR 1542.

XIIIL.
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following general terms and conditions shall apply to this Contract:

|

The entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter
hereunder is contained in this Contract. Except as otherwise provided to the
contrary, the provisions of this Contract are exclusively for the benefit of the parties
hereto and not for the benefit of any other person, persons or legal entities.

A. TERMS TO BE EXCIL.USIVE

B. WAIVER OR MODIFICATION INEFFECTIVE( UNLESS IN
WRITING

No waiver, alteration or modification of any of the provisions of this Contract
shall be binding unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto or their duly
authorized representatives.

C. ASSIGNMENT

An assignment of this Contract by the Contractor without the written consent
of the City shall be void.

D. GOVERNING LAW

This Contract or any dispute arising under or in connection with this Contract
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada, United States of America.

Santracter Ly Page 6 of 11




E. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

The parties agree that in the event of a dispute arising under or in relation to
this Contract or the services to be performed by Contractor under this Contract, the
Fourth Judicial District Court for the County of Elko, State of Nevada, shall have
jurisdiction and venue over said dispute.

F. PRIOR CONTRACTS OR AGREEMENTS

This Contract, together with its attached exhibit, contains the entire agreement
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and any prior
agreements, discussions or understandings, written or pral, are superseded by this
Contract and shall be of no force or effect. f

G. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

Contractor shall at all times comply in all material respects with all municipal,
State and Federal ordinances, rules and statutes applicable to Contractor's Work and
use of City property. Contractor shall actively pursue all required permits for the
activities contemplated herein and shall be solely responsible for obtaining all
required permits prior to engaging in the Work.

H. ATTORNEY FEES

Should either party pursue legal action to enforce any term of condition of this
Contract, or any legal action arising from or in relation to the performance of services
under this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees
and costs.

I. CONSTRUCTION OF DOCUMENT

The parties agree that they were each represented by legal counsel in
connection with the preparation of this instrument or had the opportunity to consult
with legal counsel; accordingly, the parties waive the usual rule of construction that

Coniracior i Page 7 of 11




contracts are to be strictly construed against the drafting party.
J.  BINDING EFFECT

This Contract is binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties' heirs,
administrators, successors and assigns, subject to the restriction on assignment
herein contained.

K. NOTICE

Service of all notices pursuant to this Contract shall be sufficient if made my
certified mail to the specific party involved herein at the respective addresses
hereinafter set forth or as such party may provide from time-to-time in writing:

Company: Elko Regional Airport
ATTN: Jim Foster, Airport Manager
975 Terminal Way
Elko, NV 89801

Contractor: Royal Pane Janitorial
ATTN: Susanne Ellingson
2230 Clear Water Court
Elko, NV 89801

L. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS

All duties and obligations of Contractor contained herein shall survive the
Term and shall continue thereafter in perpetuity unless and until satisfied or except
as otherwise provided herein.

M. SUCCESSORS

References to Contractor in this Contract shall include its respective
successors, heirs, assigns, agents, employees, contractors, representatives, affiliates,
parent companies and subsidiaries. The term Asuccessor@ shall mean any person,

Contractec Sy Page 8 of 11




firm, corporation or other business entity which at any time by merger, purchase or
otherwise shall acquire all or substantially all of the assets or business of either party.

N. COUNTERPARTS

This Contract may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same.

O. SIGNATURES

A facsimile, electronic or pdf signature may be used in lieu of an original
signature.

P. PARTIAL INVALIDITY |

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Contract or the application of such term or provision to persons or
circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not
be effected thereby, and each remaining term and provision of this Contract shall be
valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Q. NO WAIVER

No waiver of any right under this Contract shall be effective for any purpose
unless in writing, signed by the party hereto possessing the right, nor shall any such
waiver be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent right, term or provision of this
Contract. Moreover, the failure to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this
Contract or to require at any time performance by any party any of the provisions
hereof shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions or to affect
either the validity of this Contract or any part hereof, or the right of each party
thereafter to enforce each and every provision in accordance with the terms of this
Contract.

Page 9 of 11




R. FORCE MAJEURE

In the event either party is prevented from performing its obligations (except
for the payment of monies) under this Contract by labor strikes, fires, floods,
explosions, riots, any unusual mining casualties, Acts of God, government
restrictions or orders, severe weather conditions or other extraordinary events not
reasonably within its control, then the time for performance of that obligation by the
affected party shall be suspended during the continuance of such acts which prevent
performance.

S. BREACH OF REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

| Each party shall be responsible to the other for any claims, demands,

liabilities, damages, |suits, actions, judgments, fines, penalties, ]osi, costs and
expense (including but not limited to attorneys' fees) arising or resulting from, or
suffered, sustained or incurred as a result (direct or indirect) of the material untruth
or inaccuracy of any of the matters represented and warranted by one party to the
other or the material breach of any of the covenants, representations, and warranties
of the parties as set forth herein.

T. REMEDIES

This Contract and any of the requirements contained herein may be enforced
by an action at law or in equity to include, without limitation, an action for specific
performance.

U. AUTHORITY

Contractor warrants to the City that entering into this Contract is within its
authority, does not violate any agreement to which it is a party and does not require
the consent of any other person.

V. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE

Time is of the essence with respect to all provisions of this Contract that

Comractor | Gty

Page 10 of 11




specify a time for performance.

CITY OF ELKO: CONTRACTOR:
By: By:
REECE KEENER MAYOR SUSANNE ELLINGSON
ATTEST:
KELLY WOOLDRIDGE
CITY CLERK

Sommcter | Qv Page 11 of 11




CUSTODIAL SERVICES FOR THE
ELKO REGIONAL AIRPORT

GENERAL:

The CITY will provide paper products (paper towels, toilet paper, sanitary toilet covers), hand
soap, air fresheners, and trash bags. CUSTODIAN will provide all cleaning equipment/products
as approved by CITY for the purpose of performing janitorial duties. The main terminal
(Terminal) airport facility is 16,769 square feet inside. The Snow Response Equipment Building
(SRE) is 500 square feet. The Information Technology Building (IT) is 1,070 square feet.

CUSTODIAN the IT Department, Airport Administration and the SRE Building will be serviced
during normal business hours and servicing the terminal building areas the time will be negotiated
with the Airport Manager. The following janitorial duties will performed at the frequencies listed
below:

» Emptying and/or replacing all trash bags within the trash receptacles both inside and
outside the terminal building (1 time a day, five days a week)

e Wiping down all decorative trash receptacles in the terminal building (1 time a day 5 days
a week)

o Spot cleaning ground-level glass surfaces in tentminal building entryways, concession
space, security check-point, and passenger waiting areas in the terminal building (2 times
a day, five days a week)

« Vacuuming all carpeted areas Inside the terminal building (1 time a day, five days a
week)

« Sweeping and mopping all floors inside the terminal building (1 time a day, five days a
week)

s Sweeping sidewalks outside the terminal building (1 time a day, five days a week)

s Emptying cigaretie cans located outside the terminal building (1 time a day, five days a
week)

s Cleaning all public restrooms inside the terminal, to include mopping floors, cleaning and
sanitizing all restroom fixtures, stocking all paper projects, emptying trash cans, cleaning
mirrors, and stocking air fresheners {2 times a day, five days a week)

« Dusting all surfaces and fixtures inside the airport terminal (Twice a week)

¢ Cleaning trash receptacles located inside and outside the terminal building (Once a week)

s Thoroughly cleaning ground-level glass surfaces in terminal building, entryways,

concession space, security checkpoint, and passenger waiting areas in the terminal
building (Once a week)




Wiping down chairs in passenger and terminal waiting areas, bathroom stalls to include
the base boards and corners (Once a week)

Cleaning Airport Administration offices, to include' vacuuming, emptying trash cans.
Cleaning restroom, to include mopping, cleaning and sanitizing all restroom fixtures,
stocking all paper products, cleaning office glass surfaces (2 times a week)

Cleaning Information Technology Building offices, to include vacuuming and mopping,
emptying trash cans and dusting all surfaces. Cleaning restroom, to include mopping,
cleaning and sanitizing all restroom fixtures, and stocking all paper products. (2 times a
week)

Cleaning SRE Building offices, to include mopping, emplying trash cans. Cleaning
restroom to include, mopping, cleaning and sanitizing all restroom fixtures, and stocking
all paper products. (Once a week) :

Waxing and sealing all tiled floors inside the airport terminal (sterile area, main terminal
floors, restaurant main floor and all bathrooms. (Once a year)



Agenda Item IV.A.

A

10.
11.
12.
13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally approve Final Plat
No. 11-18, filed by Parrado Partners LP., for the development of a subdivision entitled
Great Basin Estates, Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately 9.650
acres of property into 38 lots for residential development within the R (Single Family
and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019
Agenda Category: UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: Subject property is located generally northeast of Flagstone
Drive between Opal Drive and Clarkson Drive (APN 001-633-030). Preliminary Plat
was recommended to Council to conditionally approve by Planning Commission May
3, 2016 and conditionally approved by Council May 24, 2016. The Planning
Commission considered this item on September 6, 2018, and took action to forward a
recommendation to Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 11-18. MR

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Maps, P.C. action report, Staff reports and related
correspondence. ‘

Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Final Plat No. 11-18 for the Great Basin
Estates, Phase 3 subdivision subject to the conditions as recommended by the
Planning Commission OR table item if Cease and Desist Order issued by NDEP is
still in effect.

Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Parrado Partners, LP
Robert Capps-robertca )
12257 Business Park Drive #1
Truckee, CA 96161

Created on 5/31/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10f 1



CITY o F E L Ko Website: www.elkocity.com

PI a nn i ng Depa rtment Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov

1751 College Avenue - Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7219

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT
Special Meeting of September 6, 2018

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning
Commission on September 6, 2018 pursuant to City Code Sections 3-3-6 (B)1 and (C) 2:

Final Plat No. 11-18, filed by Parrado Partners, LP, for the development of a subdivision
entitled Great Basin Estates Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately 9.65
acres divided into 38 lots for residential development within the R (Single Family and
Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto.

The subject property is located generally at the extension of Village Parkway and Opal
Drive. (001-633-030).

NOW' THEREFORE, upon review and consideration of the appiication, supporting data, public
input and testimony, the Planning Commission forwards a recommendation to City Council to
conditionally approve Final Plat No. 11-18 subject to the conditions in the City of Elko Staff
Report dated August 23, 2018 listed as follows:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section
3-3-44 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance
with Section 3-3-45 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3-44 of city code, the
public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two (2) years
of the date of Final Plat approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated
in city code.

2. The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

’l:he Developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of
approval of the Final Plat by the City Council.

w

The Final Plat is approved for 38 single family residential lots.

The Utility Department Will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision,
State approval of the subdivision is required.

Conformance with Preliminary Plat conditions is required.

Civil improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

A S A L

The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the
qualified engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with
the required inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal
to the City of Elko. The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest



edition Standard Specifications for Public Works. All Right —of-Way and utility
improvements are to be certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

10. An engineer’s estimate for the public improvements shall be provided prior to the
final plat being presented to the City Council to allow for finalization of the
required Performance Agreement.

11. Modify Planning Commission approval jurat to the 37 day of May, 2016 prior to
City Council approval.

The Planning Commission’s findings to support its recommendation are the Final Plat for Great
Basin Estates Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the subdivision proceedings in
accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code. The Final Plat is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of
the Master Plat. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the
preliminary plat application, the proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-20 through
3-3-27 (inclusive). The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in
conformance with Section 3-3-40 of City Code. The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement
plans in conformance with Section 3-3-41 of City Code. The plans have been approved by City
Staff. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the City and State agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-42 of City Code. The
Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with Section 3-3-43
of City Code. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform
to Section 3-3-44 of City Code. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance
Guarantee as stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of
City Code. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the
preliminary plat application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-
5(E), 3-2-5(G) and 3-2-17 of City Code. The proposed development is in conformance with
Section 3-8 of City Code. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management.

Attest;

f 4§
.Y Alé..J
Archulety,

Shelby

CC: Applicant
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk






FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

PROJECT INFORMATION
PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-633-030
PARCEL SIZE: 9.650 acres Phase 3, final phase of the subdivision
EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density
EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
e Northwest: River corridor / Undeveloped
Northeast: RMH- Residential Mobile Home / Developed

[ ]
e Southwest: Single Family Residential (R) / Developed
e Southeast: Single Family Residential (R) and (RMH) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
o The prop|erty is an undeveloped residential parcel.
e The area abuts the second phase the Great Basin Estates Subdivision.
o The parcel is generally flat.

MASTER PLAN, COORDINATING PLANS, and CITY CODE SECTIONS:
Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are:

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

City of Elko Zoning — Chapter 3 Subdivisions

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-3 General Provisions

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-5(E) Single-Family Residential District

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback And
Height Schedule For Principal Buildings

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
¢ City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. The Final Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 1B was recorded on June 29, 2017.

2. The Final Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 2 was approved by City Council on August
14, 2018.

3. The Final Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

4. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Preliminary Plat on May 3, 2016.

Page 2 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

5. The City Council conditionally approved the Preliminary Plat at its meeting on May 24,
2016.

6. Phasing was shown on the preliminary plat.

7. Under the conditional approval for the preliminary plat, a modification of standards was

granted for all lot dimensions.

8. The subdivision is located on APN 001-633-030, shown as parcel E on Final Plat for
Phase 2.

9. The proposed subdivision consists of 38 lots with no additional phases.

10. The total subdivided area is approximately 9.650 acres in size.

11. The proposed density is 5.09 units per acre.

12. Approximately 2.187 acres are offered for dedication for street development.

13. The area proposed for subdivision has been removed from the FEMA Special Flood
Hazard Area by a Letter of Map Revision submitted to and approved by FEMA as Case
No. 16-09-0367P with an effective date of April 3, 2017.

14. The property is located off Opal Drive and Clarkson Drive.

MASTER PLAN:

Land Use
1. Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
rev}ew and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat isjin conformance with the
Preliminary Plat and the Master Plan.
The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation

2. Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Transportation Component of the Master Plan.
ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.
ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property lies within the 20 year capture zone for the City of Elko.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Program. The sanitary
sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system and all street drainage will report to a

storm sewer system.

SECTION 3-3-6 FINAL PLAT STAGE (STAGE III)

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(1) — The Final Plat is in conformance with the zone
requirements. A modification of standards for the lot dimensions was granted with the
conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat.

Page 3 of 8




FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(2) — The proposed final plat conforms to the preliminary

plat.

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(3) — The Title Sheet includes an affidavit for public utilities

and no objections were received from public utilities upon notification for the Preliminary Plat.

SECTION 3-3-8 INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR FINAL PLAT SUBMITTAL

A. Form and Content-The final plat conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

|
} B. Identification Data
|
?
|

1. The subdivision map identified the subdivision, and provides its location by
section, township, range and county.
| 2. The subdivision map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
| 3. The subdivision map provides a scale, north point, and date of preparation.
| C. Survey Data
i 1. The boundaries of the tract are fully balanced and closed.
| 2. All exceptions are noted on the plat.
| 3. The location and description of cardinal points are tied to a section corner.
| 4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of

the tract are noted on the plat.

D. Descriptive Data

1.

hal el

Now

8.

The name, right of way lines, courses, lelllgths and widths of all streets and

easements are noted on the plat.

All drainage ways are noted on the plan.

All utility and public service easements are noted on the plat.

The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels and exceptions are shown on the
lat.

pAll residential lots are numbered consecutively on the plat.

There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the plat.

The location of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the plat with required

information.

There are no deed restrictions proposed.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment

1.

2.

The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements
and right of ways.
The execution of dedication is acknowledged and certified by a notary public.

F. Additional Information

1.
2.
3.

el

o

All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the plat.

The centerline and width of each right of way is noted on the plat.

The plat indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine the
boundaries of the subdivision.

The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the plat.

The city boundary adjoining the subdivision is not identified on the plat, as the
plat is not adjoining a boundary.

The plat identifies the location of the section lines, and 1/1 6™ section line
adjoining the subdivision boundaries.

G. City Engineer to Check

1.

The Engineer shall check the final map for accuracy of dimensions, placement of
monuments, the establishment of survey records, and conformance with the
preliminary map.

a) Closure calculations have been provided.

Page 4 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

b) Civil improvement plans have been provided, previous civil
improvement plans have been approved for this subdivision.
c) Civil improvement plans for drainage have been submitted.
d) An engineer’s estimate has not been provided.
2. It appears the lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required certifications
1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the final plat.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right of ways shown on the plat.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the final plat, certifying the signature of the City
Council.
The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the plat.
A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the plat and provides the required language.
The City Engineer’s Certificate is listed on the plat.
A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided
with the required language.
A copy of review by the state engineer is not available at this time.
A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the plat with
the required language.
10. The civil improvement plans identify the required water meters for the
subdivision.

Nk

o

SECTIONS 3-3-20 through 3-3-27 (inclulsive)

1. The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of
code during the preliminary plat process. A modification of standards for lot dimensions
was approved during that process.

Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary plat
application, the proposed development conforms Sections 3-3-20 through 3-3-27 (inclusive).

SECTION 3-3-40-RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with Section
3-3-40 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-41-ENGINEERING PL.ANS

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans in conformance with section 3-3-41 of
City code. The plans have been approved by city staff.

SECTION 3-3-42-CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-42 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-43-REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with Section 3-
3-43 of city code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter and sidewalk, paving and utilities within the Village
Parkway, Village Green Circle, Nicole Court and Opal Drive right of ways.

Page 5 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

SECTION 3-3-44-AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to address to conform to
Section 3-3-44 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-45-PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the
Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of city code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G) and 3-2-17

1. The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of
code during the preliminary plat process. A modification of standards for lot dimensions
was approved during that process.

Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary plat
application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G) and
3.2-17 of city code.

SECTION 3-8-FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT

1. The proposed subdivision has been removed from the FEMA Special Flood }Jazard
Area by a Letter of Map Revision submitted to and approved by FEMA as Case No.
16-09-0367P with an effective date of April 3, 2017.

The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of city code.
FINDINGS

1. The Final Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Plat is in conformance with the Preliminary Plat.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

5. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary
plat application, the proposed development conforms Sections 3-3-20 through 3-3-27
(inclusive).

6. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-40 of city code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans in conformance with section 3-3-
41 of City code. The plans have been approved by city staff.

Page 6 of 8



10.

11.

12.

13.
14.

FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-42 of city code.

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with
Section 3-3-43 of city code.

The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-44 of city code.

The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the
Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of city code.

Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary
plat application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E),
3-2-5(G) and 3-2-17 of city code.

The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of city code.

The subdivision is in conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management.

RECOMMEN !_)rATION

Staff recommends approval of the subdivision based on the following conditions:

1.

© ® =N o wn b

The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section 3-3-
44 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance with Section
3-3-45 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3-44 of city code, the public
improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two (2) years of the date
of Final Plat approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated in city code.

The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

The Developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of
the Final Plat by the City Council.

The Final Plat is approved for 38 single family residential lots.

The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

State approval of the subdivision is required.

Conformance with Preliminary Plat conditions is required.

Civil improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition Standard

Specifications for Public Works. All Right —of-Way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

Page 7 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

10. An engineer’s estimate for the public improvements shall be provided prior to the final

plat being presented to the City Council to allow for finalization of the required
Performance Agreement.

11. Modify Planning Commission approval jurat to the 3 day of May, 2016 prior to City
Council approval.

Page 8 of 8



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 9 [22

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**

Title: .'EIK!Ql EIQ:{ |)- [8 Q)Zf@i BQS'{D f.S;faigs EbQS{ 3

Applicant(s): ’Pavmdo’Pah‘mrs LP

Site Location: (4

Current Zoning: & Date Received: %Z 52 /% Date Public Notice: /\1/ A
COMMENT: This IS 10 Subdivide 9.05 Qacres intp 38 /ofs,

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Assistant City Manager: Date: / 2 4/ / o

~[2£az‘%5%g/ Q//)/J/)C’\/a’l/ 7 ,ﬂ/E\Oswm‘f// /7
=

ry

S‘/_ﬁy/

Initial

City Manager: Date: ?’/2(/// ¥

(E’gcmﬂam&ﬂd QPPCQVO—I bacsd vpon ceditions licred in Sd—u-FS‘_QQ‘por-f.

"

L

Initial




CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax

APPLICATION FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL

APPLICANT(s);| _ Parrado Partners, LP
MAILING ADDRESS:| 12257 Business Park Drive #8, Truckee, CA 96161

PHONE NO (Home)___ [(Business}) (530) 587-0740
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):_

(Property owniLmnseaLm_wanag.musLbﬁ_amdded)
MAILING ADDRESS: |
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF P ROPERW
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO.:| 001-633-030 Address| _Flagstone Dr/Granite Dr
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision | Lot E, Great Basin Estates Subdivision, Phase 2
Or Parcel(s) & File No. |

PROJECT DESCRIPTION OR PURPOSE: |

| | |
APPLICANT’'S REPRESENTATIVE OR ENGINEER: Ll_-l'ﬁh Desert Engineering, LLC |

FILING REQUI :

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1% Tuesday of
every month), and must include the following:
1. One .pdf of the entire application, and ten (10) 24" x 36" copies of the final plat folded to
a size not to exceed 9"x12” provided by a properly licensed surveyor, as well as one (1)
set of reproducible plans 8 2" x 11” in size and any required supporting data, prepared in
accordance with Section 3-3-8 of Elko City Code (see attached checklist).
2. Pre-Submission Requirements:
a. The final piat shall meet all requirements of the zoning district in which located,
and any necessary zoning amendment shall have been adopted by the Elko City
Council prior to filing of the final plat.
b. The final plat shall conform closely to the approved preliminary plat and be
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance.
c. The final plat submittal shall include a letter signifying approval of utility easements
by all public utilities involved, and shall be so indicated by an affidavit on the map.
d. A complete set of construction plans for all public improvements associated with
the final plat shall have been approved or substantially approved by the City
Engineer.

Fee: $750.00 + $25.00 per lot including remainder parcels; non-refundable.

Other Information: The épplicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support the request.

Revised 1/24/18 el VL Page 1

AUG 15 2018




Final Plat Checklist as per Elko City Code 3-3-8

Identification Data

Subdivision Name

Location and Section, Township and Range

Name, address and phone number of subdivider

Name, address and phone number of engineer/surveyor

Scale, North Point and Date of Preparation

Location maps

Survey Data (Required)

Boundaries of the Tract fully balanced and closed

Any exception within the plat boundaries

The subdivision is to be tied to a section corner

Location and description of all physical encroachments

Descriptive Data

Street Layout, location, widths, easements

All drainageways, designated as such

All utility and public service easements

Location and dimensions of all lots, parcels

Residential Lots shall be numbered consecutively

All sites to be dedicated to the public and proposed use

Location of all adjoining subdivisions with name date, book and page

Any private deed restrictions to be imposed upon the plat

Dedication and Acknowledgment

Statement of dedication for items to be dedicated

Execution of dedication ackowledged by a notary public

Additional Informati

10N

Street CL, and Monuments identified

Street CL and width shown on map

Location of mounuments used to determine boudaries

Each city boundary line crossing or adjoing the subdivision

Section lines crossing the subdivision boundaries

City Engineer to Check

Clasure report for each of the lots

Civil iImprovement plans

Estimate of quantities required to complete the improvements

Required Certifications

All parties having record title in the land to be subdivided

Offering for dedication

Clerk of each approving governing body

Easements

Surveyor's Certificate

City Engineer

State Health division

State Engineer

Division of Water Resources

City Council

Revised 1/24/18

Page 2



By My Signature below:

;@\ | consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

o object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

ﬂ | acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

ﬂ | acknowiedge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

\El | acknowledge that, if approved, | must provide an AutoCAD file containing the final

subdivision layout on NAD 83 NV East Zone Coordinate System to the City Engineering
Department when requesting final map signatures for recording.

best of my ability.

Applicant 1 Agent| RODETt E. Morley, P.L.S.

(Please print or type)

Mailing Address | 640 Idaho Street
Street Address or P.O. Box

Elko, Nevada 89801

City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: 775'738'4053
Email address:| rémorley@frontiernet.net

SIGNATURE: A =to~7 « . VA A//L/Z\

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

30 Loks x 25 3950 4;750 =
File No.:_|1-1® Date Filed: 8[[:5[[& Fee Paid:3 DOO ot s

300

Revised 1/24/18 Page 3




RECEIVED
AUG 15 2018

Phase 3.txt

L 1O O S ] S . W WO DO W T P TR L W S Y S S W U W 0 T 7 WP AR U T Ty W D W 9 i A s e . S e S o o Gk o Sl

Parcel name: Lot 44

North: 28473550.8913 East : 612360.1426
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 59.00
North: 28473511.6062 East : 612404.1617
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00 .
North: 28473436.9976 East ; 612337.5768
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 74.00
North: 28473486.2704 East : 612282.3664
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 9.55
North: 28473493.3955 East : 612288.7253
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 75.45
North: 28473549.6878 East : 612338.9636
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: N 86-44-51 E
Course In: S 48-15-09 E Course Out: N 41-44-51 E
RP North: [28473539.7000 East : 612350.1549
End North: '28473550.8913 East : 612360.1426

Perimeter: 341.56 Area: 7,352 S.F. 0.169 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course; S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 341,560,000.00

U i e Y4 By, PO i T S S T . T W VR, I T SR R TEIR WS W T WY O SN WD WP W A WU T A W S W P T . . S R S S ) e o o Wi, TR O S WSS P, I P S ) W . . T S P o W oy 7 _y

Parcel name: Lot 45

North: 28473511.6062 East : 612404.1617

Line Course: S 48-15-0%9 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9269
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W ZLength: 100.00

North: 28473397.0466 East :; 612382.3420
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473436.9975 East : 612337.5768
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473511.6062 East : 612404.1617
Line Course: S 21-04-39 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473511.6062 East : 612404.1617

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Page 1




Phase 3.txt
Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 46

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473357.0956 East : 612427.1071
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473397.0465 East : 612382.3419
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268
Line Course: S 31-08-20 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed|courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

- e i S, R s . A e, o ot e . S e S s S, s B, S SR M S O . o S .G D S ! o S i O O o o S

Parcel name: Lot 47

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473317.1446 BEast : 612471.8722
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473357.0955 EBast : 612427.1070
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473431.7042 East { 612493.6920
Line Course: S 44-32-56 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure — (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00~-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

o ", oo S o " vy, St - o " S i 2ot A ok - Y S o e e o o, e e A S, . 8D O ol W B . A A, W - - -

Page 2



Phase 3.txt
Parcel name: Lot 48

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473351.8022 East : 612583.2223
Line Course: $§ 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473277.1936 East : 612516.6374
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473317.1445 East : 612471.8722
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571
Line Course: S 46-10-09 W  Length: 0.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 49

North: 28473311.,8512 East : 612627.9874

Line Course: N 48~15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473351.8021 East : 612583.2222
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473277.1935 East : 612516.6373
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473237.2425 East ; 612561.4025
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473311.8512 East : 612627.9874
Line Course: S 36-17-33 W  Length: 0.00

North: 28473311.8512 East : 612627.9874

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 50

North: 28473307.5780 East : 612632.7754
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 6.42
North: 28473311.8528 East : 612627.9855

Page 3




Phase 3.txt
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473237.2442 East : 612561.4006
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 25.06
North: 28473220.5580 East ; 612580.0975
Line Course: S 37-41-16 E Length: 43.58
North: 28473186.0708 East : 612606.7405
Line Course: N 41-45-12 E Length: 105.55
North: 28473264.8130 East : 612677.0289
Curve Length: 61.56 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 4-33-04 Tangent: 30.80
Chord: 61.54 Course: N 45-58-37 W
Course In: S 46-17-55 W Course Out: N 41-44-51 E
RP North: 28472729.3656 East : 612116.7424
End North: 28473307.5826 East : 612632.7754
Line Course: S 01-47-24 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473307.5826 East ¢ 612632.7754

Perimeter: 342.16 Area: 6,912 S.F. 0.159 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0045 Course: N 00-20-13 E
Error North: 0.00452 East : 0.00003

Precision 1: 76,037.78

i ) o W W P W S PN S SO T DU SRR T VRS W SO SR T e et B e T gtz Wit e O P o s o e s, e . . A W A . A, . AN A N s RS e G W A A D W O TS Ty S ST W S o, S

Parcel name: Lot 51

North: 28473264.8082 East : 612677.0290
Curve Length: 74.85 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 5-32-02 Tangent: 37.45
Chord: 74.82 Course: S 40-56-04 E
Course In: S5 46-17-55 W Course Out: N 51-49-57 E
RP North: 28472729.3608 East : 612116.7425
End North: 28473208.2818 East : 612726.0533
Line Course: S 48-00-44 W Length: 108.30
North: 28473135.8321 East : 612645.5553
Line Course: N 37-41-16 W Length: 63.48
North: 28473186.0672 East : 612606.7463
Line Course: N 41-45-12 E Length: 105.55
North: 28473264.8085 East : 612677.0347

Perimeter: 352.18 Area: 7,389 S.F. 0.170 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0058 Course: N 77-25-02 E
Error North: 0.00125 East : 0.00562

Precision 1: 60,720.69




Parcel name: Lot 52

North:
Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Course:

North:

Curve

Line

Line

North:; 28473135.8332 East : 612645.5504
Line Course: N 48-00-44 E Length: 108.30
North: 28473208.2829 East 612726.0484
Perimeter: 364.34 Area: 7,935 S.F. 0.182 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0032 Course: S 67-29-22 W
Error North: ~0.00121 East -0.00293
Precisioﬂ 1: 113,856.25
Parcel name: Lot 53
North: 28473147.2961 East 612769.39%46
Curve Length: 74.85 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 5-32-01 Tangent: 37.45
Chord: 74.82 Course: S 29-52-02 E
Course In: S 57-21-58 W Course OQut: N 62-53-59 E
RP North: 28472729.3626 East 612116.7410
End North: 28473082.4133 East 612806.6542
Line Course: S 53-39-25 W Length: 107.04
North: 28473018.9794 East 3 612720,4353
Line Course: N 32-39-03 W Length: 68.80

28473208.2841
74.85

5-32-01

74.82

S 51-49-57 W
28472729.3631
28473147.2966

Phase 3.txt

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East

S 50-43-33 W Length: 111.20

28473076.9034

East :

Course: N 32-39-03 W Length: 69.99

612726.0514
775.00

37.45

S 35-24-03 E
N 57-21-58 E
612116.7405
612769.3940

612683.3113

North: 28473076.9072 East : 612683.3165
Line Course: N 50-43-33 E Length: 111.20
North: 28473147.3003 East : 612769.3993
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473147.3003 East : 612769.3993
Perimeter: 361.89 Area: 7,824 S.F. 0.180 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0063 Course: N 47-53-33 E
Error North: 0.00425 East 0.00471
Precision 1: 57,442.86

s i

e a2 10




Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 54

North: 28473069.3312 Fast : 612868.4368
Curve Length: 63.52 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 4-24-42 Tangent: 31.78
Chord: 63.51 Course: N 26-32-30 W
Course In: S 65-39-51 W Course Out: N €61-15-09 E
RP North: 28472729.3617 East : 612116.7416
End North: 28473126.1459 East : 612840.0585
Line Course: N 63-48-49 E Length: 103.71
North: 28473171.9123 East ; 612933.1240
Line Course: S 33-34-46 E Length: 76.31%
North: 28473108.3370 East : 612975.3305
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 108.63
North: 28473069.0179 FEast : 612874.0661
Line Course: S 65-39-51 W ‘Length: 5.00
North: 28473066.9574 East : 612869.5104
Line Course: N 24-20-0%9 W Length: 2.61
North: 28473069.3355 East ; 612868.4349

Perimeteﬁ: 359,77 Area: 7,621 S,F. 0.175 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0047 Course: N 24-54-01 W
Brror North: 0.00429 East : -0.00199

Precision 1: 76,548.94

oy o s sl s, e ] A D VD GO o O W Sl W AR S R M SO e M s e e e L i e L A Wl . D A S S A T S s . A S M i, N M S G O S, S, W P S S i o W Wt Y 3 e

Parcel name: Lot 55

North: 28473126.1460 East : 612840.0584
Curve Length: 58.26 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 4-02-46 Tangent: 29.14
Chord: 58.25 Course: N 30-46-14 W
Course In: S 61-15-09 W Course Out: N 57-12-23 E
RP North: 28472729.3618 East : 612116.7416
End North: 28473176.1938 East : 612810.2588
Line Course: N 57-29-16 E Length: 100.01
North: 28473229.9471 East : 612894.5949
Line Course: S 33-34-46 E Length: 69.66
North: 28473171.9120 East : 612933.1234
Line Course: S 63-48-49 W Length: 103.71
North: 28473126.1455 Bast : 612840.0578

Perimeter: 331.63 Area: 6,473 S.F. 0.149 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0008 Course: S 50-47-13 W
BError North: -0.00049 East : -0.00060

Precision 1: 414,550.00
Page 6




Phase 3.txt

S W W " Yo W W W _ W W YO W 0¥ T T (o, ST S S . o i S R o A i e o, i o ok i s e D O A e M D B M S D NN S W i S S T . T - - D ] T . "

Parcel name: Lot 56

North: 28473176.1939 East 612810.2587
Curve Length: 70.23 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 4-52-39 Tangent: 35.14
Chord: 70.21 Course: N 35-13-56 W
Course In: S 57-12-23 W Course Out: N 52-19-44 E
RP North: 28472729.3620 East : 612116.7414
End North: 28473233.5426 East 612769.7552
Curve Length: 22.40 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 85-33-39 Tangent: 13.88
Chord: 20.38 Course: N 05-06-33 E
Course In: N 52~19-44 E Course Out: N 42-06-37 W
RP North: 28473242.7095 East : 612781.6281
End North: 28473253.8373 East : 612771.5697
Line Course: N 47-53-23 E Length: 75.24
North: 28473304.2903 East : 612827.3869
Line Course: 5| 42-06-44 E Length: 100.22
North: 28473229.9438 East : 612894.5930
Line Course: S 57-29-16 W Length: 100.01
North: 28473176.1904 East : 612810.2569
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473176.1904 East :; 612810.2569
Perimeter: 368.09 Area: 8,568 S.F. 0.197 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure -

(Uses listed courses,

radii, and deltas)

Error Closure: 0.0039 Course: S 28-20-56 W
Brror North: -0.00347 East -0.00187
Precision 1: 94,384.62

Parcel name: Lot 57

North: 28473304.2895 East 612827.3875

line Course: N 47-53-23 E Length: 60.35

North: 28473344.7578 East 612872.1584
Curve Length: 21.47 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 82-00-04 Tangent: 13.04
Chord: 19.68 Course: N 88-53-25 E
Course In: S 42-06-37 E Course Cut: N 39-53-27 E
RP North: 28473333.6300 East :; 612882.2168
End North: 28473345.1390 East : 612891.8367

Line Course: S 50-06-33 E Length: 84.57

North: 28473290.9020 East : 612956.7246
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent: 9.33

Page 7




Phase 3.txt

Chord: 16.90 Course: S 25-06-43 E
Course In: S 39-53-27 W Course Out: N 89-53-08 E
RP North: 28473275.5566 East : 612943.8980
End North: 28473275.5965 East : 612963.8980
Line Course: S8 56-37-37 W Length: 82.99
North: 28473229.9447 East : 612894.5925
Line Course: N 42-06-44 W Length: 100.22
North: 28473304.2912 East : 612827.3865
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473304.2912 East : 612827.3865
Perimeter: 367.04 Area: 8,586 S.F. 0.197 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0020 Course: N 29-41-16 W
Error North: 0.00171 East : -0.00098
Precision 1: 183,525.00
Parcel name: Lot 58
North: 28473275.5971 Bast 612963.8968
Curve Length: 81.11 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 92-56-48 Tangent: 52.64
Chord: 72.51 Course: S 46-35-16 E
Course In: N 89-53-08 E Course Out: S 03-03-40 E
RP North: 28473275.6970 East ; 613013.8967
End North: 28473225.7683 East : 613016.5668
Line Course: S 03-03-40 E Length: 99.50
North: 28473126.4103 East : 613021.8802
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 49.94
North: 28473108.3343 East : 612975.3263
Line Course: N 33-34-46 W Length: 76.31
North: 28473171.9097 East 612933.1198
Line Course: N 33-34-46 W Length: 69.66
North: 28473229.9448 East : 612894.5914
Line Course: N 56-37~37 E Length: 82.99
North: 28473275.5966 East : 612963.8969
Line Course: S 920-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473275.5966 East : 612963.8969
Perimeter: 459.51 Area: 11,758 S.F. 0.270 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0005 Course: S 06-41-40 E
Exrror North: -0.00053 East : 0.00006
Precision 1: 919,020.00

e oot oo

Dt

-




Parcel name: Lot 59

North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course 1In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

28473225.7683
62.48
71-36-03
58.50

N 03-03-40 W
28473275.6970
28473262.4713

Phase 3.txt

East
Radius
Tangent
Course
Course Out

East

East

S 74-39-43 E Length: 262.30

28473193.0894

East

Line Course: S5 80-27-31 W Length: 217.18

North:

28473157.0896

East

Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 84.76

North:

28473126.4104

East

Line Course: N 03-03-40 W ZLength: 99.50

North:

Perimeter:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

e e e S e A WA A, i . Al S i O A s B . S, ] D W N A S s D A . A W D A S AR R A . DD OSSO N S S S W WA T W S S S S S W D W W T S T S W O T T

28473225.7684
726.22 Area:
0.0046

0.00005
157,873.91

Parcel name: Lot 60

North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Line <Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Perimeter:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

28473316.4906
61.10
70-00-42
57.37

S 35-19-35 W
28473275.6970
28473262.4714

(Uses listed courses,

East

radii, and deltas)
Course: N 89-24-51 E
East 0.00455
East 613042.8083
Radius: 50.00
Tangent: 35.02
Course: S 19-40-04 E
Course Out: S 74-39-43 E
East 613013.8967
East: 613062.1157

S 74-39-43 E Length: 262.30

28473193.0894

N 46-55-41 W Length: 204.73

28473332.9029

N 54-33-09 W Length: 90.62

28473385.4585

S 35-19-35 W Length: 84.54

28473316.4848
703.28 Area:
0.0066

-0.00584
106,559.09

{(Uses listed courses,

East

Page 9

.

*
-

-
-

613016.5668
50.00

36.06

N 51-08-19 E
S 74-39-43 E
613013.8968
613062.1159

613315.0733
613100.8977
613021.8848

613016.5714

18,725 S.F. 0.430 ACRES

East €613315.0731
East : 613165.5185
East ¢« 613091.6952
East : 613042.8113
19,445 S.F. 0.446 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: S 27-18-00 E

0.006301




Phase 3.txt

T . T A, e T . Y T S o o o . o R - o S W . s ot e . e i e e o . i e M vl i o s A o, R S A B T A T Ve U Sl e S A S T

Parcel name: Lot 61

North: 28473329.2660 East 612988.7897
Line Course: N 50-06-33 W Length: 34.90
North: 28473351.6483 East 612962.0121

Line Course: N 37-00-20 E Length: 102.79

North: 28473433.7340 East : 613023.8806
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 83.24

North: 28473385.4584 East 3 613091.6918
Line Course: S 35-19-35 W Length: 84.54

North: 28473316.4847 East :r 613042.8080
Curve Length: 39.65 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 45-25-49 Tangent: 20.93
Chord: 38.61 Course: N 77-23-20 W
Course In: S 35-19-35 W Course Out: N 10-06-14 W
RP North: 28473275.6911 East 613013.8963
End North: 28473324.9157 East 613005.1246
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.90 Course: N 75-06-24 W
Course In: N 10-06-14 W Course Out: S 39-53-27 W
RP North: 28473344.6055 East : 613001.6159
End North: 28473329.2601 East : 612988.7894
Perimeter: 362.57 Area: 8,289 S.F. 0.190 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0059 Course: S8 02-53-31 W
Error North: -0.00584 East -0.00030
Precision 1: 61,452.54

Parcel name: Lot 62

North: 28473407.8278 East
Line Course: N 37-00-20 E Length:
North: 28473477.2481
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length:
North: 28473433.7339
Line Course: S 37-00-20 W Length:
North: 28473351.6482
Line Course: N 50~-06-33 W Length:
North: 28473374.2229

Curve Length: 10.93

612910.4311

86.93

East : 612962.7536
75.03

East : 613023.8766
102.79

East : 612962.0081
35.20

East : 612935.0002
Radius: 20.00

Delta: 31-18-01 Tangent: 5.60

Chord: 10.79 Course: N 34-27-33 W
Course In: N 39-53-27 E Course Qut: 8 71-11-28 W
RP North: 28473389.5683 East 612947.8268

Page 10



Phase 3.txt

End North: 28473383.1200 East 612928.8948
Curve Length: 31,36 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 35-56-09 Tangent: 16.22
Chord: 30.85 Course: N 36-46-36 W
- Course In: S 71-11-28 W Course Out: N 35-15-19 E
RP North: 28473366.9994 Bast ; 612881.5648
End North: 28473407.8288 East : 612910.4259
Line Course: N 08-52-50 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473407.8288 East : 612910.4259

Perimeter: 342.23 Area: 7,239 S.F. 0.166 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: (.0053 Course; N 79-03-06 W

Error North: 0.00101 East -0.00524
Precision 1: 64,573.58

A i s W 9. . b o o A . S . S i, Ll e o, Ml e s A S P i, e s A, . A o B M O o, e S W O T T B 0 i W T D W G SO T St A ol S . .

Parcel name: Lot 63

North: 28473414.6415 East 612866.4001
Line Course: N 07-35-56 W Length: 146.26
| North: 28473559.6171 East 612847.0591
| Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 142.02
North: 28473477.2516 East : 612962.7553
Line Course: S 37-00-20 W Length: 86.93
North: 28473407.8313 East : 612910.4328
| Curve Length: 46.18 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 52-55-02 Tangent: 24.88
Course: N 81-12-12 W

| Chord: 44.56

| Course In: S 35-15-19 W Course Out: N 17-395-43 W
RP North: 284733€7.001% East : 612881.5718
End North: 28473414.6450 East 612866.4018

Perimeter: 421.39 Area: 9,139 S.F. 0.210 ACRES

3 Mapcheck Closure -~ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
} Error Closure: 0.0039 Course: N 25-04-50 E
f Error North: 0.00353 East : 0.00165
Precision 1: 108,048.72
|
| Parcel name: Lot 64
North: 28473458.0698 East 612756.4434
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 136.10
North: 284735598.6170 East 612847.0601
Line Course: 8 07-35-56 E Length: 146.26
North: 28473414.6414 East 612866€.4011

Page 11




Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:

Line Course: N 45-09-12 W Length:

North:
Line Course:
North:

Phase 3.txt

48.65
55-44-56
46.75

S 17-39-43 E
28473366.9983
28473381.2736

28473458.0712

28473458.0712

Radius:
Tangent:
Course:

East
East
108.90
EBast

S 08-52-50 E Length: 0.00

East

Course Out:

-

.
-

50.00

26.45

S 44-27-49 W
N 73-24-39 W
612881.5711
612833.6522

612756.4425

612756.4425

Perimeter: 439.91 Area: 9,913 S.F. 0.228 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Brror Closure: 0.0017 Course: N 32-10-58 W
Error North: 0.00141 ’ East -0.00089

Precision 1: 258,770.59

i

Parcel name: Lot 65

North: 28473398.3800 East 612703.1787
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 80.00
North: 28473458.0697 East 612756.4435
Line Course: S 45-09-12 E Length: 108.90
North:; 28473381.2722 East 612833.6532

Radius: 20.00

Tangent: 5.60
Course: S 32-14-22 W
Course Out: S 42-06-37 E

Curve Length: 10.93
Delta: 31-18-02
Chord: 10.79
Course In: N 73-24-39 W

RP North: 28473386.9823 East : 612814.4856
End North: 28473372.1452 East : 612827.8968
Line Course: S 47-53-23 W Length: 63.83
North: 28473329.3434 East : 612780.5442
Line Course: N 48-15-17 W Length: 103.69
North: 28473398.3823 Fast 3 612703.1798
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473398.3823 East : 612703.1798

Perimeter: 367.34 Area: 8,290 S.F. 0.190 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure -~ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0025 Course: N 26-06-30 E

Error North: 0.00228 East 0.00112
Precision 1: 146,940.00

e o Sl DO W WO Gl Y S, k) . i B A Sl S N, e . ki A i i, . B, s . . ke, s o U A e, A o e i it K. A ol i, R s e Ot B A . W i, S, OV WO IR i A N . A, B WD 0 WA

Parcel name: Lot 66

Page 12




Phase 3.txt

North: 28473398.3800 East 612703.1787

Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.69

North: 28473329.3411 East : 612780.5431
Line Course: S 47-53-23 W Length: 54.90

North: 28473292.5274 East : 612739.8152
Curve Length: 23.29 Radius: 15.00

Delta: 88-58-41 Tangent: 14.73

Chord: 21.02 Course: N 87-37-17 W

Course In: N 42-06-37 W

Course Out:

RP North: 28473303.6552 East 612729.7568
End North: 28473293.3998% East : 612718.8102
Curve Length: 73.73 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 5-07-13 Tangent: 36.89
Chord: 73.70 Course: N 45-41-33 W
Course In: S 46-52-04 W Course Out: N 41-44-51 E
RP North: 28472729.3604 East : 612116.7434
End North: 28473344.8817 East : 612666.0689
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 7.93
North: 28473350.1619 East : 612660.1524
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 64.62
North: 28473398.3763 East : 612703.1770
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473398.3763 East : 612703.1770
Perimeter: 328.16 Area: 6,570 S.F. 0.151 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0041 Course: S 24-14-30 W
Error North: -0.00371 East -0.00167
Precision 1: 80,039.02

A D, . i, Sl T i D Al S R D o Yl S S O S, M . B, S (A Sk, S A, S W o, Ll W . . 0 i NS P, A Al Ml el s N T O A A M, e S . T W M YA 98 W

Parcel name:

North: 28473350.1625

Lot 67

East

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 88.68
North: 28473409.2100 East
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius:
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent:
Chord: 21.21 Course:
Course In: N 41-44-51 F Course Out:
RP North: 28473420.4013 East . ¢
End North: 28473430.3890 East :
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 49.62
North: 28473467.4099 East
Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.67
North: 28473398.3843 East :
Line Course: S 41-44-40 W Length: 64.62
North: 28473350.1699 East :
Line Course: N 30-41-59 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473350.1699 East :

Page 13

S 46-52-04 W

612660.1514

612593.9885
15.00

15.00

N 03-15-09 W
N 48-15-09 W
612603.9762
612592.7849

612625.8244
612703.1738
612660.1492

612660.1492




Phase 3.txt

Perimeter: 330.16 Area: 6,651 S.F. 0.153 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0077 Course: N 16-43-22 W
Error North: 0.00736 East : -0.00221

Precision 1: 42,876.62

— - s~ v - - - - - -

Parcel name: Lot 68

North: 28473467.4083 East : 612625.8264
Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.67
North: 28473398.3827 East : 612703.1758
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 80.00
North: 28473458.0724 East : 612756.4406
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 80.37
North: 28473511.5838 East : 612696.4750
Curve Length: 56.70 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 64-58-12 Tangent: 31.84
Chord: 53.71 Course: S 59-15-27 W
Course In: N 63-13-39 W Course Out: S 01-44-33 W
RP North: 28473534.1063 East : 612651.8349
End North: 28473484.1294 East: 612650.3145
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-42 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.90 Course: S 66-44-42 W
Course In: S 01-44-33 W Course Out: N 48-15-09 W
RP North: 28473464.1386 East : 612649.7064
End North: 28473477.4556 East : 612634.7846
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 13.46
North: 28473467.4133 East : 612625.8223
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473467.4133 East : 612625,8223

Perimeter: 351.65 Area: 7,196 S.F. 0.165 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0065 Course: N 38-48-39 W
Error North: 0.00505 East : -0.00406

Precision 1: 54,100.00

AR S S0 S A S . S (D OO D B W W D W W D S M s s il S . W U T W Gl e O Tl P s, L M M S - OO NAS B TS D RO WD T D s W Yk M Nl A B TS D D S W S W T U N st 2

Parcel name: Lot 69

North: 28473511.5796 East : 612696.4796
Curve Length: 64.43 Radius: 50.00

Delta: 73-50-06 Tangent: 37.56

Chord: 60.07 Course: N 10-08-42 W

Page 14




Course In: N 63-13-39 W

Phase 3.txt
Course Out: N 42-56-15 E

RP North: 28473534.10290
End North: 28473570.7069

Line
Line
Line
Line

Line

Course: N 42-56-15 E Length:
North: 28473633.0523

Course: S 54-33-0%9 E Length:
North: 28473559.6182

Course: S 41-44-40 W Length:
North: 28473458.0710

Course: N 48-15-1%9 W Length:
North: 28473511.5824

Course: N 03-34-35 W Length:
North: 28473511.5824

East
East
85.16
East
126.62
East
136.10
East
80.37
East
0.00
Bast

-
.
.
-
.
*

»
'3

o
-

»

612651.8395
612685.8995

612743.9105
612847.0611
612756.4445
612696.4789

612696.4789

Perimeter: 492.68 Area: 15,110 S.F. 0.347 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure -

(Uses listed courses,

radii, and deltas)

Error Closure: 0.0029 Course: N 13-24-13 W
Erroxr North: 0.00278 East -0.00066
Precision 1: 169,889.66
Parcel name: Lot 70
North: 28473581.5078 East 612635.9433
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 88.98
North: 28473640.7518 East : 612569.5537
Line Course: N 46-08-47 E Length: 96.52
North: 28473707.6226 East : 612639.1554
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 128.59
North: 28473633.0460 East :; 612743.9109
Line Course: S 42-56-15 W Length: 85.16
North: 28473570.7006 East : 612685.8999
Curve Length: 53.65 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 61-28-29 Tangent: 29.73
Chord: 51.11 Course: N 77-48-00 W
Course In: S 42-56-15 W Course Out: N 18-32-14 W
RP North: 28473534.0957 East : 612651.8399%
End North: 28473581.5016 East : 612635.9439
Line Course: S 43-37-31 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473581.5016 East : 612635.9439
Perimeter: 452.90 Area: 12,635 S.F. 0.290 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure -

Error

Closure: 0.0062

Error North: -0.00618
Precision 1: 73,048.39

(Uses listed courses,
Course:

East

radii, and deltas)

S 05-10-00 E
0.00056




Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 71

North: 28473581.8964 East : 612517.0211
Line Course: S 48-30-52 E Length: 107.41
North: 28473510.7447 East : 612597.4844
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.90 Course: N 16-45-01 E
Course In: N 48-15-09 W Course Out: N 81-45-1Q E
RP North: 28473524.0617 East : 612582.5626
End North: 28473526.9306 East : 612602.3558
Curve Length: 69.56 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 79-42-36 Tangent: 41.74
Chord: 64.08 Course: N 31-36~-28 E
Course In: N 81-45-10 E Course Out: N 18-32-14 W
RP North: 28473534.1028 East ; 612651.8387
End North: 28473581.5087 East ¢ 612635.9427
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 88.98
North: 28473640.7527 East : 612569.5531
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 78.89
North: 28?73581.8940 East : 612517.0242
Perimeter: 362.30 Area: 7,099 S.F. 0.163 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0040 Course: 3 51-25-09 E
Error North: -0.00249 East 0.00312
Precision 1: 90,572.50

o 2 V" T o O A" {in . . Y S AP N Vo W T " T - . . " - . -

S e bt 9563 g’ ot o, Wi, W . e . -

Parcel name: Lot 72

North: 28473581.8964 Bast : 612517.0211
Line Course: S 48-30-52 E Length: 107.41
North: 28473510.7447 East : 612597.4844
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.08
North: 28473463.6816 East : 612555.4826
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 950-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: S 86-44-51 W
Course In: N 48-15-09 W Course Out: S 41-44-51 W
RP North: 28473473.6693 East : 612544.2913
End North: 28473462.4780 East : 612534.3036
Line Course: N 48-15~09 W Length: 92.41
North: 28473524.0091 East : 612465.3577
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 77.59
North: 28473581.8980 East : 612517.0210
Perimeter: 364.05 Area: 8,312 S.F. 0.191 ACRES

Page 16




Phase 3.txt

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure: 0.0015
Error North: 0.00153

Precision 1: 242,700.00

- Y - - ——— o~ " " " “ o, 2y dke Yo s iy . W . S W S WO DA TS, o, . S s W

Parcel name: Lot 73

North: 28473588.1956 East
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length:
North: 28473524.0077
Course: N 41-44-51 E Length:
North: 28473581.8966
Course: N 48-15-09 W Length:
North; 28473656.0722
Course: S 41-44-51 W Length:
North: 28473609.3746
Length: 23.56
Delta: 90-00-00
lChord: 21.21
Course In: S 48-15-09 B
RP North: 28473599.3869
End North: 28473588.1956

Line
Line
Line

Curve

Perimeter: 371.54 Area:
Mapcheck Closure -
Error Closure: 0.0000

Error North: 0.00000

Precision 1: 371,540,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 74

North: 28473656.0721 East

(Uses listed courses,

Tangent:

(Uses listed courses,

radii, and deltas)
Course: N 05-02-22 W
East -0.00014

0 . G W T o Y ) o o T — > Y>> o073 .. U o > T . -

612393.4351
96.40
East :
77.59
East :
111.40
East :
62.59
East i 612392.2316
Radius: 15.00
15.00
03-1

612465.3579

612517.0211

612433.9071

Course: S -09 E

Course Out: S 41-44-51 W

East :
East

612403.4229
612393.4351

8,595 S.F. 0.197 ACRES

radii, and deltas)
N 00~00-00 E
0.00000

Course:
East

612433.9072

Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 78.89

North: 28473714.9309 East : 612486.4360
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.40

North: 28473640.7553 East : 612569.5500
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 78.89

North: 28473581.8965 East : 612517.0212
Line Course: N 48-15-0%9 W Length: 111.40

North: 28473656.0721 East : 612433.9072
Line Course: N 42-11-04 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473656.0721 East : 612433.9072

Perimeter: 380.58 Area: 8,788 S.F. 0.202 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure -

(Uses listed courses,
Page 17

radii, and deltas)




Phase 3.txt
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: 8 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000
Precision 1: 380,580,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 75

North: 28473714.9308 East : 612486.4361
Line Course: S 48-15-03%3 E Length: 111.40
North: 28473640.7552 East : 612569.5501
Line Course: N 46~08-47 E Length: 96.52
North: 28473707.6260 East : 612639.1519
Line Course: N 54-33-09 W Length: 105.44
North: 28473768.7767 East : 612553.2554
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 14.00
North: 28473778.0986 East ; 612542.8102
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 84.67
North: 28473714.9274 East : 612486.4328
Line Course: S 43-28-06 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473714.9174 East ; 612486.4328
Perimeter: 412.03 Area: 10,309 S.F. 0.237 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0047 Course: S 44-02-34 W
Error North: -0.00339 East : -0.00328

Precision 1: 87,665.96

Parcel name: Lot 76

North: 28473875.3134 East : 612433.8827

Line Course: N 48-15-0%9 W Length: 25.00

North: 28473891.9596 East : 612415.2306
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473844.5085 East : 612372.8826
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473770.5992 East ; 612455.6982
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473818.0503 East ; 612458.0462
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 86.00

North: 28473875.3134 East : 612433.8827

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00
Page 18




Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 77

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473770.5993 East ; 612455.6981
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473723.1482 East : 612413.3501
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825
Line Course: N 32-00-19 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ~ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

- - Y . o i R OO . MO PO . S W . T . O W VA, " 0 W . P o Sy Y o TN o S . 4 B0 G S o e s A4 e O s bl Al T i . P S

Parcel name: Lot 78

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473723.1483 East : 612413.3501
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473675.6972 East ; 612371.0021
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473749.6064 East : 612288.1865
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345
Line Course: N 01-47-24 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 3495,200,000.00

-~ T o - o 7 . - D0 S T S T . B Tl G S s M . O OO T W - T W S —— - -

Parcel name: Lot 79




Phase 3.txt

North: 28473749.6065 East : 612288.1864

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473675.6972 East : 612371.0020
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473628.2461 East : 612328.6540
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473749.6065 East : 612288.1864
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473749.6065 East : 612288.1864

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

..--..,.,.__..........-......._....................,...._w-_-_r_...._._.._-......-_._,.m....m - T—_— " -~

Parcel name: Lot 80

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473628.2462 East : 612328.6539
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473580.7951 East : 612286.3059
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473654.7043 East : 612203.4903
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384
Line Course: N 29-21-28 E Length: 0.00

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North; 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

D B A T S . S e e, i T WD S W i, S W . . W ] A Mt S U R S D D, S S SR O A A W o AN U T . S e O T B D S L ol . M OB R WD N A, ) WA A B e S O A -l S

Parcel name: Lot 81

North: 28473654.7044 East : 612203.4903
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60
North: 28473607.2533 East : 612161.1423

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00
Page 20



Phase 3.txt

North: 28473533.3440 East :
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60
North: 28473580.7951 East :

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473654.7044 East :
Line Course: N 48-21-59 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473654.7044 East 1

612243.9579

612286.3059

612203.4903

612203.4%03

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ~ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East: 0.00000
Precision 1: 349,200,000.00
Parcel name: Street Dedication
North: 28472369.4166 East : 613949.2330

Line Course: S 48-15-0% E Length: 60.00

North: 28472329.4656 ast :
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 226.15
North: 28472160.7382 East
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius:
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent:
Chord: 21.21 Course:

Course In: S 48-15-09 E Course Out:

RP North: 28472150.7504 East

End North: 28472139.5592 East
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 188.81

North: 28472013.8402 East :

Curve Length: 23.56 Radius:

Delta: $0-00-00 Tangent:

Chord: 21.21 Course:

Course In: N 41-44-51 E Course Out:

RP North: 28472025.0315 East ;

End North: 28472015.0437 East :
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.08

North: 28472062.1069 East :

Curve Length: 17.45 Radius:

Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent:

Chord: 16.90 Course:

Course In: N 48-15-09 W Course Out:

RP North: 28472075.4239 East :

End North: 28472078.2927 East
Curve Length: 244.34 Radius:
Delta: 279-59-23 Tangent:
Chord: 64.29 Course:

Course In: N 81-45-10 E Course Out:

RP North: 28472085.4650 East :

End North: 28472035.4881 East :
Page 21

613993.9982

613843.4164
15.00

15.00

S 03-15-09 E
S 41-44-51 W
613854.6077
613844.6200

613985.4886
15.00

15.00

N 86-44-51 E
S 48-15-09 E
613995.4763
614006.6676

614048.6694
20.00

9.33

N 16-45-01 E
N 81-45-10 E
614033.7476
614053.5408
50.00

41.96

S 48-15-09 E
S 01-44-33 W
614103.0237
614101.5033



Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Line
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:

17.45
49-59-42
16.90

S 01-44-33 W
28472015.4973
28472028.8143

Phase 3.txt
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East :
East :

S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.08

28471981.7512
23.56
90-00-00
21.21

S 48-15-09 E
28471971.7635
28471960.5722

East :
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East

BEast

se e

S 48-15-09 E Length: 96.61

28471896.2445
73.73

5-07-13

73.70

S 41-44-51 W
28471280.7232
28471844.7627
23.29
88-58-41
21.02

N 46-52-04 E
28471855.0180
28471843.8902

Bast :
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East

N 47-53-23 E Length: 118.73

28471923.5057
10.93
31-18-02
10.79

N 42-06-37 W
28471938.3428
28471932.6327
126.19
144-36-07
95.27

S 73-24-39 E
28471918.3573
28471934.4779
10.93
31-18-01
10.79

N 71-11-28 E
28471940.9262
28471925.5808

28471880.6238
17.45
49-59-41
16.90

Rast
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East

Course: 3 50-06-33 E Length: 70.10

East =
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:

Page 22

20.00

9.33

S 66-44-42 W
N 48-15-09 W
614100.8952
614085.9734

614043.9717
15.00

15.00

S 03-15-09 E
5 41-44-51 W
614055.1630
614045.1752

614117.2547
825.00

36.89

S 45-41-33 E
N 46-52-04 E
613567.9291
614169.9959
15.00

14.73

S 87-37-17 E
S 42-06-37 E
614180.9426
614191.0010

614279.0815
20.00

5.60

N 32-14-22 E
5 73-24-39 E
614265.6703
614284.8378
50.00

156.68

N 88-53-25 E
N 71-11-28 E
614332.7566
614380.0866
20.00

5.60

S 34-27-33 E
S 39-53-27 W
614399.0186
614386.1921

614439.9775
20.00

9.33

S 75-06-24 E



Course In:

N 39-53-27 E

Phase 3.txt
Course Out: S 10-06-14 E

RP North: 28471895.9692 East 614452.8041
End North: 28471876.2794 East 614456.3127
Curve Length: 244.34 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 279-59-22 Tangent: 41.96
Chord: 64.29 Course: S 39-53-27 W
Course In: S 10-06-14 E Course Out: S 89-53-08 w
RP  North: 28471827.0548 East 614465.0844
; End North: 28471826.9549 East 614415.0845
| Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
| Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent: 9.33
% Chord: 16.90 Course: N 25-06-43 W
| Course In: S 89-53-08 W Course Out: N 39-53-27 E
| RP North: 28471826.9150 East : 614395.0845
| End North: 28471842.2603 East : 614407.9111
Line Course: N 50-06-33 W Length: 84.57
North: 28471896.4973 East : 614343.0233
Curve Length: 21.47 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 82-00-04 Tangent: 13.04
Chord: 19,68 Course: S 88-53-25 W
Course In: S 39-53-27 W Course Out: N 42-06-37 W
RP North: 28471884.9883 East 614333.4033
End North: 28471896.1162 East 614323.3450
Line Course: S 47-53-23 W Length: 135.59
North: 28471805.1950 East 614222.7568
Curve Length: 22.40 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 85-33-39 Tangent: 13.88
Chord: 20.38 Course: S 05-06-33 W
Course In: S 42-06-37 E Course Out: S 52-19-44 W
RP North: 28471794.0671 East 614232.8152
| End North: 28471784.9002 East 614220.9422
Curve Length: 192.01 Radius: 825.00
i Delta: 13-20-07 Tangent: 96.44
Chord: 191.58 Course: S 31-00-12 E
Course In: S 52-19-44 W Course Out: N 65-39-51 E
RP North: 28471280.7196 East : 613567.9285
End North: 28471620.6891 * East : 614319.6237
Line Course: S 24-20-09 E Length: 2.61
North: 28471618.3110 East : 614320.6992
Line Course: S 65-39-51 W Length: 50.00

North: 28471597.7068 East : 614275.1420
Line Course: N 24-20-09 W Length: 2.61
North: 28471600.0849 East : 614274.0664
Curve Length: 323,50 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 23-55-00 Tangent: 164.14
Chord: 321.16 Course: N 36-17-39 W
Course In: S 65-39-51 W Course Out: N 41-44-51 E
RP North: 28471280.7196 East 613567.9285
End North: 28471858.9366 East : 614083.9615
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 365.42
North: 28472102.2512 East 613811.3266
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00

Page 23




Phase 3.txt

Chord: 21.21 Course: S 86-44-51 W
Course In: S 41-44-51 W Course Out: N 48-15-09 W
RP North: 28472091.0599 East : 613801.3389
End North: 28472101.0476 Bast : 613790.1476
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 75.45
North: 28472044.7554 East : 613739.9093
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00
North: 28472084.7063 East : 613695.1441
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 381.60
North: 28472369.4129 East : 613949.2321
Line Course: S8 32-00-19 E Length: 0.00
North: 28472369.4129 East : 613949.2321

Perimeter: 3501.57 Area: 95,280 S.F. 2.187 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0038 Course: S 13-46-59 W
Error North: -0.00367 East : -0.00090

Precision 1: 921,468.42

ﬂu“%bl&%m&sm-ﬂw-ﬁ‘,M“uum'uxdﬂrm“ﬂ_m&-‘m&amwm‘.‘--m—n—_-—-l—-‘_-n——-——---—-—T—'-‘-—-—~——~

Parcel name: Total Area

North: 28472443.3259 East : 613866.4175
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 185.00
North: 28472320.1438 East : 614004.4435
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 751.56
North: 28471884.2716 East : 614616.6998
Line Course: S 46-55-41 E Length: 204.73
North: 28471744.4581 East : 614766.2544
Line Course: S 80-27-31 W Length: 217.18
North: 28471708.4584 East : 614552.0789
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 243.33
North: 28471620.3840 East : 614325.2477
Line Course: S 65-39-51 W Length: 55.00
North: 28471597.7193 East : 614275.1346
Line Course: N 24-20-09 W Length: 2.61
North: 28471600.0974 East : 614274.0591
Curve Length: 37.39 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 2-45-52 Tangent: 18.70
Chord: 37.39 Course: N 25-43-05 W
Course In: S 65-39-51 W Course Out: N 62-53-59 E
RP North: 28471280.7321 East : 613567.9212
End North: 28471633.7828 East: 614257.8344
Line Course: S 53-39-25 W Length: 107.04
North: 28471570.3489 East : 614171.6155
Line Course: N 32-39-03 W Length: 138.79
North: 28471687.2064 East : 614096.7357
Line Course: N 37-41-16 W Length: 107.06
North: 28471771.9288 East : 614031.2837

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 399.06
Page 24



Phase 3.txt

North: 28472037.6426 East : 613733.5505
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 9.55

North: 28472044.7677 East : 613739.9093
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 171.00

North: 28472158.6279 East : 613612.3286
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 381.60

North: 28472443.3345 East : 613866.4166

Perimeter: 3010.90 Area: 420,362 S.F. 9.650 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ~ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0086 Course: N 06-~12-57 W

Error North: 0.00852 East : -0.00093
Precision 1: 350,104.65

Page 25




GREAT BASIN ESTATES SUBDIVISION — PHASE 3
CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA “

OWNERS CERTIFICATE

3

N

KNOWN OF ALL MEN 8Y THESE PRESENTS THAT THE UNDERSIGNED, ROBERT
OF_PARRADO PARTNERS, LP, A CALIFORN(A LIM{TéD
R OF THOSE HOWN OV THIS WAP
‘CONSENT 10 THE PREPARATION AND RECORDATION OF THIS WAR
ICATION ALL OF THE RCHTS OF WAY AND EASEMENTS FOR

Al

DeD
OREAT BASIN ESTATES PUBLIC AGCESS, PUBLIC UTILITY AND ORAINAGE PURPOSES AS OESIGNATED
SUSDIVISION — PHASE 3 HEREON. (N WITHESS |, ROBERT CAPPS, SET MY HAND ON THE UATE SHOWN.
AN =
&l PARRADO PARTNERS, LP
b
3 BY: ROBERT CAPPS, GP PRESIOENT DATE
=
APPROVAL ~ NEVADA DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
STATE OF NEVADA
THIS FiNAL PLAT (S APPROVED BY TIE 0IVISION OF WATER RESOURCES Fiod COUNTY OF ELKO
OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVAT(ON AND WATURAL ING vy
WATER GURNTITY, SUBJEGT TO REVIEW OF APFROVAL O FILE IN THIS OFF ICE.
THIS (NSTRUMENT WAS ACKHOWLEDGED BEFORE ME ON THE ________ OAY
-~ " 7" 2010, Y ROBERT CAPPS, PRESIDENT OF PARRADD
FARTIERS, TP,
WEVADA OIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES OATE
NGTARY PURL(E
APPROVAL — NEVADA DIVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
THIS FINAL PLAT IS APPROYED BY TVE NEVADA DIVISION OF ® . .
EMVIRGNMENTAL PROTECTION OF THE DEPARTWENT OF COMSERVATION AND e 3 SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
RATURAL RESOURCES. THIS AL SEWAGE DISPOSAL, WATER N 3
POLLUTION, WATER GUAL ITY AD WATER SUPPLY FACILITIES AND (S
PREDICATED UPON FLANS FOR A PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AND A COMMMITY 1. ROBERT E. MORLEY, A PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR LICENSED IN THE
SYSTEM FOR DISPOSAL OF SEWAGE. g STATE OF NEVADA, CERTEFY THAT:
[ 1. THIS PLAT REPRESENTS THE RESULTS OF A SURVEY CONDUCTED UNDER MY
T ST ST TR T TR —— 3 OIRECT SUPERVISION AT THE INSTANCE OF ROGERT CAPPS, PRESIOENT OF
REVADA OIVISION OF ENVIROMMENTAL PROTECTION, TRE PARRADG PARTMERS, LP.
GUREAL OF WATER POLLUTION CONTROL
ESSEN TEAW US4, C. 2. THE LANDS SURVEYED LIE WITHIN SECTION 14, T.34 N., R.55 €., NOBK
SONDARY LIE ADLSTUENT U, AND THE SURVEY WAS COWLETEO ON '
o e PARRADD PARTNERS, L
oy i PARCEL W0, 2 3. THIS PLAT COMPLIES WITH THE APRLICABLE STATE STATUTES AWD ANY
FEMA NOTE A PARCEL WAP LOCAL ORDINAKCES I EFFECT ON THE DATE THAT THE GOVERWING B0OY GAVE
4 g o 81106 ITS FINAL APPROVAL .
&
4. _THE MOMAENTS DEPICTED ON THE PLAT ARE OF THE CHARACTER SHOWN,
T LOTS winiin GRCAY 8514 CSTATES Scmrvesion, e 3 15 siom: 7 nire Sooupy THE POSI TIONS. NG ICATED A3 ARE OF SUPF (GIENT, AR ARG
I LT ER OF e eV 13100 SUGMTTTED 10 WD APORIIED. SV Ik A8 srass 1ef 13 i
CASE HO. 16-09-037P WITH AM EFFECT(VE DATE OF APRIL 3, 2017. £
MODERN CONCRETE, WC: ROBERT €. MORLEY. P .L.5. 6203
PARGEL WO, §
PARCEL AP
FRE NO. 383079 PASRADO PARINERS. LF N
107 4 A %,
cRar susey ESTATES SUBOnVSON
) CITY ENGINEER'S REPRESENTATIVE CERTIFICATE
AE NG 715613
" REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE
ENGTREER OF THE CTTV GF ELKG. NEVADA, DO MEREGY CERTIFY THAT | HAVE
EXAMINED TH1 (80 1T SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS |T APPEARED
- Q4 THE TENTATIVE WAP, W(TH ALL APPROVED ALTERATIONS: TKAT
1005 0F W, o 8. 830, INCLUSIVE,
GREAT BASN ESTATES ORD APPLICABLE AT THE afeRovAL TENTATIVE
e wo. % - - AP HAVE BEEN DOWPLED WITH: THAT | AM SATISF(ED TMAT THIS WAP IS
TECHNIGALLY CORRECT; AMD THAT THE MOMAENTS AS SHOM ARE OF THE
CHARACTER AMD GCCUPY THE POSITIONS INDICATED

GREAT BASIN ESTATES
SUBDIVISION PHASE J

SEE SHEET
650 ACRES

GREAT BASW £STATES CITY ENGINEER OR BATE
PHASE 1a
ALE no, 727522

APPROVAL — CITY OF ELKO PLANNING COMMISSION

ROVAL - PuBLIC uT AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF ELKQ. NEVADA. PLANNING COMMISSION
HELD OW THE STH DAY OF MAY, 2018, A TENTATIVE MAP OF TH|S SUBDIVISION
oA sl 10 Wb 27h B0 T
A ke Sou A ALY oo 165 Wi St TENRATIVE i D ALL
DT PuRALaRT THERETS hAVE SEEN T

THE PUBLIC UTILITY EASGENTS, AS DESICATED HEREON, ARE APPROVED
@Y THE RESPECTIVE UTILITIES EXECUT (NG BELOW.

FRONT 1R COMMUNICAT TONS. DATE ‘v*

CHATRUAN, CITY OF ELKQ PLANNING GOMMISSTON ATE
GeEAT BASH ESTATES
STERRA PACIFIC POVER COWAN | G/B/A W7 ENORGY  GATE STV FrASE
JOSHUA TREE SHELTER 1°=800" APPROVAL - CITY OF ELKO
PARCEL aty N
SATVIEW DROAGBARD BATE P CounciL
FLE N 62508 AT A REGULAR LEETING OF THE CITY OF £LKO, NEVADA. GITY OONGIL HELD
Y OF______________. 2018, THIS WAP WAS APPROVED FOR
SOUTHNEST GAS e U0 |V1STON, PURPOSES FURSIANT TO N .S 278 451 TROUGH 278,485,
NCLUSIVE, ARD ALL APPLICASLE LOCAL GROINANGES, WLL OFFERS OF
OEDICATION. AS SHOWNM HEREON, WERE ACCEFTED FOR PUBLIC USE.
AVOUTE WLAS NEVADA, LS RYOR, CITY OF ELKD, MEVADR TATE
NOTES: AP OF REVERSION
£ wa 683525
1) THE TOTAL SUBDIVIDED MREA OF THIS WA E0UALS 9.850 ACKES. ATTEST: CITY GLERK, CYTY OF ELKO, NEVADA L33
2) BASIS OF BEARINDS: THE LINES SETWEEN THE FOUND CENTERLINE STREET
WOMAENTS 4S THE FINAL Wi OF GREAT BASIN ESTATES SUBDIVESION,
PHASE 1A, FILE NO. 715613, THE FINAL WAP OF GREA BASIN ESTATES
SURGIVISion, PMASE 18, FILE NO. 727522 ANG THE FINAL AP OF GREAT GASIN 200 [ 200 400 600 800
SUB0IVISION, PHASE 2. FILE MO,
3) A PUBLIC UTILITY CASIMINT IS HEREBY CRANTED SPECIFICMLLY TO WV 200"
R et o g L SeoLss 120
Y0 1T THAT PARCEL WU SA1O. SHTLITY FASIL LTIES FOR-THE FURROSE OF COUNTY ASSESSOR'S CERTIFICATE FIUNG DATA SHEET | OF 2
SR e RESG T O Tiuk oF TVTALLATION s T STILTIY S "y
- 1, KATRIMKA 3. RUSSELL, CERTIFY THAT THE ASSESSOR'S PARCEL
£) A PUBLIC UTILITY EASENT 1S HERESY GRANTED SPECIFICALLY 10 LEGEND MABERS SHOW OM THIS PLAT ARE CORRECT AMD THAT THE PROPOSKD PARCELS FILE W0 FINAL MAP
B Y e L, wencey S ARE A OIVISION OF SAID ASSESSOR'S PARCEL WO LED AT THE REQUEST OF oF
e Fatrei 115 i PhoviDE SHICE o AT PAM Wi D O = secTion conen 45 wore, o DEBERT G INEER .
RIGHT Ta'ERLT AT PARGEL WITH ADDVTIONA. UTILITY FACILITIES FOR TiE . U COMTY TRERSRER oATE GREAT BASIN ESTATES SUBDIVISION
PURPOSE OF SENVI 3 ARE A0 st . oate 2018
DUSTING PUBLIC ATGHTI-OF—UAY FOR THE PURPOSE OF MAINTAINING, @ = FOUND 5/2% REBAR WITH CAP WARKED PLS 6203. —_—
(NSTALLING, (HSPECTING AMD REPAIRING SAID UTILITY FAGIL ITIES.
S} N ADDITIGN TO ANY EASEENTS SHOWH, THE LOTS SHOWN ARC SUBJECT TO © = CALGRATED POINT GWLY, NITHING FOLND OR SCT CQUNTY TREASURER'S CERTHICATE N
St R A i b SRR B ———————— e SECTION 14, .34 N, R.55 £, MDE& N.
ALONG ALL BIOF AN REAR BOMDRY | INES. No. " WAVE BEEN PAID FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR. CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
THIS WP SURDIVIDES LOT £ AS SHOMN O THE £ING. AP OF GREAT BASIN T —
ATES SUBDIVISION, PHASE Z. ON FILE i THE OFFICE OF THE ELXD Fryer o e 3 D e oROER HICH DESERT 640 mano STREET
COUNTY NEVADA, FHE WO ENGINEERING, ELKO, NEVADA 88601 2 1 8047
LLC (775} 738-4053




\ \

PR - - \——- umvmszuEwrm 2 \ \ \
- e 1| e AT

\
\
\ \

0T A l

AT BASN ESTATES |
PHASE 1

|

|

TR
:
H

— wAY
- o 5 5 a0
DEDICA ALE NO. 437729

BN
\

|
oo 707 i, omnAGE g d |
Ay
Y gl !
gl !
ol Se .
B o
148.00° x
W}ﬁ J ‘ (
—
g VT
s ssure
o -
E e
b EH ne
K R
] h
i #g oy
8 o= i s
RERERC - N o
| sawws |
e 'i
§ <
ol Blw Lx 225 4
ISR L oS
fremme s :
£
Pananc oumiens 2 [ Lo 81 Dl wor@ M
oear Sk ESTATES ? 7080 SF. ? I 3 aawsr.,;\
FRE NO. 715615 N €215°05° W L9 L!h oo :
g t 80 2
oo =% s
: I : Vo e i
. £ :
T e
el W l AT BASIN ESTATES | E3k) 7
Iommese 1% A | mesreime [ ot 1
L | 8 ® R -~ G20 25,
————y . cemwmome L] D
R o e = .
[ R ['_”_'7‘_'__T_-_"1-—'—_1__-—_T___‘*\
IS | | 1 | | LEGEND
| e, | [ T S A L | B\ cear ansh esmms =~ 2 o -
| mEE l PHASE IA-FILE NO. 715613 | /%' / @ = 56T o STRECT st
F t | II l[ I , i | | Jo0ds’ o \ Ao | wre ~ A = FoNG CeNTERL(ME STREET MOMBENT.
| I | | \ EAY \ A we 7153 s wo. mtuJ ' ’ ® = SET $/2° REBAR WITH CAP WARKED PLS 6203 UMLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
DS 1P S| oo | eumao [y | \ A\ \ /J’—"" -l |
| P . | by ""13?%" | Mmm?s"| "‘"’,’,‘,"ﬁ"| prrae] Mooy Ly N — M‘asm'._‘ 1072, , @ = FOMD 3/8" REBAR WITH CAP MARKED PLS 6203.
ol Be | Al & | e o | mcines \ZR
— | wiff l v e | wmE |7 71561 | P ﬁ‘!‘f b | O = CALCULATED POINT ONLY, NOTHING FOMO OR SET
N GREAT BASIN ESTATES —_—
: s 8 i : 8 _mwemane | - e T ) : I E T e
"‘ Ll [} d P, 5 E
—_ _ ~ warw _ FLAGSTONE DRVE _ = ~ . e | R
:— : %‘i.;. o TEE P (// \ e \ s i (-
sor 22 -2 — — - ——— e, —_ rs
e W 72722 g o 3
| # I | I Y wre \ m-rs:r’m\ /_l_-———‘\ b & 2 &0 120 180 240
=== _{ 4 \ oo\ T P \ |
. 107 20 I 107 19 ' wrie ' 7184 \ RECHD O SREY \ \ PP
By FRE M. FRE MO AL 0. AL N PARTMERS, 1P FALE NO. 724833 Ve SCALE: 1°=60
| melfiZme | T§ | | | G S| AR \ [ SHEET 2 OF 2
L __ S SR SR S EER | NN \ & \ FINAL MAP
el \ I [ s
g ——— v/ o Vo GREAT BASIN ESTATES SUBDIVISION
i e \ e e \ \% \ PHASE 3
v 1 & | RECORD OF UMWY \ \1 w
74 \/ FRE N 7v0s3 v\ '
| ' SECTION 14, .34 N., R.55 £, MD.B.& M.

nf s X \ \ \ CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
IR
\

HIGH DESERT 640 mpato stREsT
i l ENGINEERING, Etxo, vevana ssear | 21 80477
ILC (775) 738-4053




Agenda Item V.A.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible initiation to amend Title 2, Chapter 13 of
the Elko City Code entitled “Sidewalks, Curbs, Gutters” and to recodify it as Title
8, Chapter 21, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019
Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 1S Minutes
Background Information: The section of the City Municipal Code regulating the
installation of curb, gutter, and sidewalk is currently located within the City’s
Building Code. With the replacement of the current code with the adoption of the
2018 IBC, this curb, gutter, and sidewalk section needs to be placed elsewhere in the
City Code to continue to be enforced.
Concurrently with this change in location, some updates to the language are
proposed. The most significant change is the addition of standard enforcement
language located in other sections of the City Code. Smaller changes include
rewording existing language and correcting typos. MR
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Title 8, Chapter 21 proposed revisions shown with
track changes

Recommended Motion: Move to initiate to amend Title 2, Chapter 13 of the Elko City
Code entitled “Sidewalks, Curbs, Gutters’ and to recodify it as Title 8, Chapter 21,
as presented by staff and approved by the City Attorney.

Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager

Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Department, Public Works Department,
Engineering Department, City Attorney

Council Action:

Agenda Distribution:

Created 05/20/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



CITY OF ELKO
ORDINANCE NO. 841

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 13 OF THE ELKO CITY CODE ENTITLED "SIDEWALKS,
CURBS, GUTTERS" AND TO RECODIFYING THE SECTION AS TITLE 8, CHAPTER 21

WHEREAS, the City of Elko intends to amend Title 2, Chapter 1 of the Elko City Code, entitled “Building
Regulations”, to conform with the 2018 Unified Building Code; and

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the amendments to Title 2, Chapter 1, the City of Elko intends to amend
Title 2, Chapter 13, entitled “Sidewalk, Curbs, Gutters”, to include adding clarifying language, correcting
grammatical errors, and recodifying the chapter in Title 8, Chapter 21; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

For amendment purposes, words which are bold and underlined are additions to the Code and words
which are bold and lined through are deletions from the Code.

SECTION 1. Title 8, Chapter 21 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

Chapter 13 21
SIDEWALKS, CURBS, GUTTERS

2-13-1 8-21-1: PERMIT REQUIRED:

2-13-2 8-21-2: PLANS TO BE APPROVED:

2-13-3 8-21-3: SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER CONSTRUCTION:

2-13-4 8-21-4: SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE, RECONSTRUCTION AND REPAIR:
2-13-5 8-21-5: PENALHES ENFORCEMENT:

8-21-6: APPEAL OF NOTICE OF VIOLATION:

8-21-7: INJUNCTIVE RELIEF:

8-21-8: PENALTIES:

8-21-9: REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE:

2-13-1 8-21-1: PERMIT REQUIRED:

it shall be unlawful for any person to hereafter install, construct, or lay, or cause to be installed,
constructed or laid, any sidewalk ersidewalks, curb or gutter within the street lines established by of
the eCity without first obtaining a permit from the City for that purpose. The issuance of a permit
pursuant to this Sectlon shall be in addltlon to and not in I|eu of any other permlts required under the

Clty Code. authe

i :-" l.”.l o ‘-‘- - DO EaPERT

2-13-2 8-21-2: PLANS TO BE APPROVED:

Any sidewalk, curb or gutter hereafter constructed within the street lines of established by the eCity by-

any-person shall be constructed-in-strict-compliance in conformance with specifications and plans, and
Page 1 of 6 Ord. 841



upon grades and lines te-be approved by the eCity eouncil-or-its-duly-authorized-engineer. (Ord~787,-8-
26-2014)

2-13-3 8-21-3: SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER CONSTRUCTION:

A. Required; Exception: Except as otherwise provided in this sSection, sidewalks, curbs and gutters shall
be required on all vacant lots or parcels of land which are hereafter developed; or upon lots or
parcels of land which are merged or divided; or upon developed lots or parcels of land involving a
change in building occupancy and use of land; or upon any lot or parcel of Iand with which any
building expansion or new construction shall-take-place involving the addition of gross floor area
greater than four hundred (400) square feet; or upon a lot or parcel of land when a change of use
results in a measurable increase in pedestrian or vehicular traffic; provided, however, that upon the
request of the eCity dDevelopment dDepartment or application by a the property owner, or a
tenant, lessee or a contractor duly authorized to represent said property owner, and for cause
shown, the eCity eCouncil may waive all or part of; the requirement for the installation of the above
described improvements, subject to Subsections B and C of this Section.

B. Request Tto Waive Requirements Bby Development Department: Any request by the eCity
dDevelopment dDepartment to waive all or part of the requirement to install curb, gutter and
sidewalk shall be bajed on the following criteria:

1) £The presence or proposed installation of other substantially equivalent or superior
improvements in the vicinity of the lot or parcel of landy;

2) eConditions on the lot or parcel of land affecting the practicability of installing the curb, gutter
and sidewalk; and

3) aAny other factors unique circumstances deemed by the eCity dDevelopment Department to be
appropriate grounds for waiving any or all of the foregoing requirements relative to the
installation of curb, gutter and sidewalk.

C. Request Fto Waive Requirements Bby Property Owner or Authorized Representative: Any
application to waive all or part of the requirement to install curb, gutter and/or sidewalk by a the
! property owner, or a tenant, lessee or contractor duly authorized to represent said property owner:

1) sShall be based on evidence that it is impractical to install curb, gutter and sidewalk because of
circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the applicant property owner; and

2) sShall include a filing fee paid to the eCity in an amount established by resolution of the €City

eCouncil. {Ord—787-8-26-2014)

2-13-4 8-21-4: SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE, RECONSTRUCTION AND REPAIR:

A. Responsibility ©of Property Owners: It is the responsibility of all property owners in the €City to
reasgnably maintain a any sidewalk constructed of in a public right of way that abuts the owner's

i property within the street lines ef-t-he—elt-y established by the CJ Ihe—#espensrb#&t—y—mpesed—&s—

! Fu#t-her-mene,—t-has Th|s Subsectlon Ais not mtended and cannot shall not be rehed upon to define
? determine the standard of care in any civil action for negligence to include an action asserting erfor-
the-establishment-of negligence per se forits-vielation.

Page 2 of 6 Ord. 841



B. Standards:

1. Except as otherwise provided in this-cede the City Code or pursuant to authority granted by the
City Code, all seetions-ofthe-city sidewalks shall be constructed of concrete eement with a
minimum of four inches (4") in depth and a-mirirmum-offourfeet-{4}-Ha-width with a width

determined as follows:

a. Four feet (4’) for sidewalks along all unclassified roadways or roadways classified as local
residential in the City’s Master Plan and along roadways determined by the City Development
Department to be functionally equivalent to “local residential” as that term is used in the City’s
Master Plan; or

b. Five feet (5') in width for all other sidewalks, to include sidewalks along roadways classified
as residential collector or higher in the City’s Master Plan or along roadways determined by the
City Development Department to be functionally equivalent to or higher than “residential
collector” as that term is used in the City’s Master Plan.

Wherever—mwﬁdewau(—has-been if an emstm_g sidewalk on a Cltv block was constructed uhder

g - = eina
manner consistent wnth the CltV Code then in effect, but the sndewalk is inconsistent with
existing requirements pertaining to lines and grades, all subsequently constructed sidewalks for
the remaining properties in the same block shall be se constructed such that uniformity of line
and $rade may-be is maintained.

C. Reconstruction Aand Repair:

1. The eCity Council may require the reconstruction ard or repair of sidewalks in under the
following circumstances:

of-way;
ba. Requiring-any The reconstruction or repair of a sidewalk is required as a condition of
approval for a division, merger, or change in the use of the land abutting property, or;

€b. The abutting property owner’s actions resulted in damage to the sidewalk necessitating
repair or reconstruction; provided the City Development Department may impose an
assessment or other charge authorized by law on the abutting property owner for any_
reconstruction or repair of a sidewalk if the reconstruction or repair is performed by the
City or its contractor in a public right-of-way at the direction of the City Council; or The-
repairand-recenstruction of a sidewalk in the public right-of-way that-abuts-the-property-of-
| 4l 41 P | : on.

c. The abutting property owner abandons any existing curb cuts or driveway approaches.

2. Any sidewalk ordered repaired or reconstructed by the €City eCouncil shall be repaired or
reconstructed by the owners of the property which abuts upon the sidewalk. The property
owner shall complete said the reconstruction and or repairy within a time period set by the City
Council, not to exceed ninety (90) days. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Section,
the City Council shall not require the reconstruction or repair of a sidewalk outside of the
during-the-city construction season generally recognized by the City for projects of a similar
type and nature.

Page 3 of 6 Ord. 841



A. Notice of Violation: If a person violates a prohibition contained in this Chapter or fails to meet a

requirement of this Chapter, or fails to comply with an order issued by the City Council pursuant
to this Chapter to repair or reconstruct a sidewalk, the City Development Department may order
compliance by written notice of violation to the responsible person.

B. Deadline: If abatement of a violation or repair or reconstruction of a sidewalk is required, the
notice shall set forth a deadline within which such abatement, repair, or reconstruction must be
completed. In the event of an order to repair or reconstruct a sidewalk, the foregoing notice shall
further advise that, should the violator fail to compl{/ with the established deadline, the work will
be done by the City or its contractor and the expense thereof shall be charged to the property
owner.

8-21-6: APPEAL OF NOTICE OF VIOLATION:

Any person receiving a notice of violation may appeal the determination to the City Council. The
notice of appeal must be received by the City Clerk within thirty (30) days from the date of issuance of
the notice of violation. A hearing on the appeal before the Elko City Council shall take place within
forty-five (45) days from the date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The decision of the City Council
shall be final and subject to judicial review; provided, any petition for judicial review of a final
decision by the City Council shall be commenced within thirty (30) days of the date of the City Council
decision.

8-21-7: INJUNCTIVE RELIEF:

if a person has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this Chapter, the City may petition for
a preliminary or permanent injunction restraining the person from activities which could create
further violations or compelling the person to perform work required by order of the City Council.

8-21-8: PENALTIES:

Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall, upon conviction, be punished as
provided in Title 1, Chapter 3 of this Code. Each day’s violation of the provisions of this Chapter shall
be deemed a separate offense.

8-21-9: REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE:

Page 4 of 6 Ord. 841




The remedies listed in this Chapter are not exclusive of any other remedies available under any
applicable federal, state, or local law and it is within the discretion of the City to seek cumulative
remedies.

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but only to
the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 3. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be held
to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity,
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any remaining provision
of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4. Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this ordinance
published by title only, together with the Councilpersons voting for or against its passage in a

newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one publication.

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned, unless otherwise stated.

Page 5 of 6 Ord. 841



PASSED AND ADOPTED this --" day of ---, 2019 by the following vote of the Elko City Council.
VOTE:

AYES:

NAYES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN: None

CITY OF ELKO

By:

REECE KEENER, Mayor
ATTEST:

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk

Page 6 of 6 Ord. 841

























Agenda Item V.B.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate the deletion of Title 2,
Chapter 1, Section 15 of the Elko City Code entitled “Exemptions for Existing
Buildings, Structures and Building Service Equipment Systems”, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: March 12, 2019

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: This chapter needs to be deleted as the City will be
adopting the 2018 International Building Codes that mcludes the exemptions for

. existing buildings in ordinance 839. JF

Budget Information: N/A

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: None
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
Prepared By: Jeff Ford, Building Official

Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 6/4/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheets Page 1 0f 1



Agenda Item V.C.

A

10.
11.
12.
13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Discussion and direction from Council on legal options regarding delinquent
transient lodging tax payments for the Shilo Inn, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: The Shilo Inn is routinely d%elinquent in its payment of
transient lodging taxes. On March 28, 2019, the City Attorney recorded a Notice of
Tax Lien for August, October and November 2018 unpaid transient lodging taxes.
At the time of recordation, these unpaid taxes, including penalties and interest,
totaled $30,983.65. Shilo Inn subsequently paid $12,282.28 for the August 2018
delinquent taxes and that portion of the lien was released. However, $18,701.37,
together with penalties and interest, remains unpaid for October 2018 and
November 2018 taxes. On May 9, 2019, the City Attorney recorded another Notice
of Tax Lien in the amount of $5,548.07 for unpaid |transient lodging taxes for
January 2019, including penalty and interest. That amount has not been paid.
Transient lodging taxes for April 2019 are also delinquent, but a lien has not yet
been recorded for that month. The City has several options, to include commencing
a civil action to foreclose on the property pursuant to NRS 268.095(7)(b) for the
amounts stated in the recorded liens; commencing a proceeding before the City
Council to terminate, suspend or revoke the Shilo Inn’s business license pursuant to
Elko City Code Section 4-6-12; and/or commencing a criminal prosecution in
municipal court pursuant to Elko City Code 4-6-16. Staff seeks direction from the
Council as to which option or options to pursue. KW

Budget Information: N/A

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: None
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
Prepared By: Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 6/4/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheetj Page 10f 1



Agenda Item V.D.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Discussion and direction from Council on legal options regarding delinquent
transient lodging tax payments for the Thunderbird Inn, owned by Elko 345, LLC.,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: Elko 345, LL.C, the owner oﬂ the Thunderbird Inn, owes
for delinquent transient lodging taxes for February, March and April 2019. On
May 13, 2019, the City Attorney recorded a Notice of Tax Lien for December 2018
and January 2019 unpaid transient lodging taxes. At the time of recordation, these
unpaid taxes, including penalties and interest, totaled $6,289.10. Elko 345, LLC has
also failed to provide a number of Transient Lodging Tax Returns, which are
required under Elko City Code Section 4-6-9 and 4-6-15(B). Elko 345, LLC does
not own the property on which the Thunderbird Inn is located, but instead has only
a leasehold interest. Therefore, a foreclosure action may not be cost-effective, since
the leasehold interest is unlikely to have value. The City may also commence a
proceeding before the City Council to terminate, suspend or revoke the
Thunderbird Inn’s business license pursuant to Elko City Code Section 4-6-12;
and/or commence a criminal prosecution in municipal court pursuant to Elko City
Code 4-6-16. Staff seeks direction from the Council as to which option or options to
pursue. KW |

Budget Information: N/A

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: None
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
Prepared By: Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item VL A.

10.
11.
12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 9-19, a
Resolution providing for the transfer of the City’s 2019 Private Activity Bond Cap
to the Nevada Rural Housing Authority, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: June 11, 2019
Agenda Category: RESOLUTION
Time Required: 5 Minutes
Background Information: The City of Elko has previously transferred its portion of
the tax-exempt private activity bond cap to the Nevada Rural Housing Authority.
This year the Nevada Rural Housing Authority is requesting the City’s allocation of
the bonds for the purpose of providing a means of financing the costs of single
family residential housing that will provide decent, safe and sanitary dwellings at
affordable prices for persons of low and moderate income. A request letter from
Nevada Rural Housing Authority and Resolution No. 9-19 have been enclosed in the
agenda packet for review. CC
Budget Impact Statement:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Resolution No. 9-19
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
Prepared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:
Council Agenda Distribution: NV Rural Housing Authority

Attention: Lourdes Zuniga Perez
lourdes@nvrural.org

Created on 6/5/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 1



RESOLUTION NO. 9-19

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA PROVIDING FOR
THE TRANSFER OF THE CITY’S 2019 PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND VOLUME CAP TO THE
NEVADA RURAL HOUSING AUTHORITY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 348A of the Nevada Revised Statutes
(“NRS”) and Chapter 348A of the Nevada Administrative Code (“NAC”), there has been allocated
to the City of Elko, Elko County, Nevada (the “City,” “County” and “State,” respectively), the
amount of $1,102,370.26 in tax-exempt private activity bond volume cap for year 2019 (the “2019
Bond Cap”); and

WHEREAS, the Nevada Rural Housing Authority (the “NRHA "), has requested that the City
transfer its 2019 Bond Cap to the NRHA for the purpose of providing a means of financing the
costs of single family residential housing that will provide decent, safe and sanitary dwellings at
affordable prices for persons of low and moderate income ( “Single Family Programs”); and

WHEREAS, the City is a local government as defined by NAC 348A.070; and

WHEREAS, Section 348A.180 of the NAC provides a procedure whereby the City may, by
resolution, transfer to any other local government located within the same county, all or any portion
of its 2019 Bond Cap; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 315.983(1)(a), the NRHA is an instrumentality, local
government and political subdivision of the State; and

WHEREAS, the NRHA is located within the County, pursuant to NRS 315.963, which
defines the NRHA’s area of operation as “any area of the State which is not included within the
corporate limits of a city or town having a population of 150,000 or more.”

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City does hereby find, resolve, determine and
order as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth herein above are true and correct in all
respects.

Section 2. Transfer of Private Activity Bond Volume Cap. Pursuant to NAC 348A.180,
the City hereby transfers 2019 Bond Cap in the amount of $1,102,370.26 to the NRHA for its
Single Family Programs.

Section 3.  Use of 2019 Bond Cap. The NRHA will use the 2019 Bond Cap for single
family purposes in calendar year 2019 or carry forward any remaining amount according to the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for such purposes.

PABC-2019-Resolution_Elko
2241065



Section 4. Representative of City. Pursuant to NAC 348A.180(1), the Director of the
State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) may contact Kelly
Wooldridge, regarding this Resolution at (775) 777-7100 or in writing 1751 College Avenue, Elko,
NV 89801.

Section 5. Additional Action. The Mayor and Clerk of the City are hereby authorized
and directed to take all actions as necessary to effectuate the transfer of the 2019 Bond Cap, and
carry out the duties of the City hereunder, including the execution of all certificates pertaining to
the transfer as required by NAC Ch. 348A.

Section 6.  Direction to the NRHA. The NRHA shall notify the Director in writing as
soon as practicable of the occurrence or nonoccurrence of any term or condition that would affect
the disposition of the 2019 Bond Cap.

Section 7.  Representative of the NRHA. Pursuant to NAC 348A.180(3), the Director
may contact Diane Arvizo, Director of Homeownership Programs of the NRHA regarding this
Resolution at (775) 886-7900 or in writing at Nevada Rural Housing Authority, 3695 Desatoya
Drive, Carson City, Nevada 89701.

Section 8.  Obligation of the City. This Resolution is not to be construed as a pledge of
the faith and credit of or by the City, or of any agency, instrumentality, or subdivision of the City.
Nothing in this Resolution obligates or authorizes the City to issue bonds for any project or to grant
approvals for a project or constitutes a representation that such bonds will be issued.

Section 9.  Enforceability. 1f any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the
remaining provisions of this Resolution. This Resolution shall go into effect immediately upon its
passage.



ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this day of , 2019.

CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

By

Curtis Calder, City Manager

ATTEST:

By

Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk



CERTIFICATE OF TRANSFER OF VOLUME CAP

I, Kelly Wooldridge, am the duly chosen and qualified City Clerk of the City of Elko,
Nevada (the “City”) and in the performance of my duties as City Clerk do hereby certify to the
Office of Business Finance and Planning in accordance with Section 348A.260 of the Nevada
Administrative Code (“NAC”), that the private activity bond volume cap allocated to the City in
the amount of $1,102,370.26 has been transferred as follows:

$1,102,370.26 has been transferred pursuant to NAC 348A.180 from the City, a
local government, located in Elko County to the Nevada Rural Housing Authority,
a local government, located within Elko County for the purpose of providing a
means of financing the costs of single family residential housing that will provide
decent, safe and sanitary dwellings at affordable prices for persons of low and
moderate income.

This certificate is being filed within five (5) days of the transfer being made in accordance
with NAC 348.260.

Crity OF ELKO, NEVADA

By
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk

cc: Diane Arvizo, Nevada Rural Housing Authority



Agenda Item VILA.

A

10.
11.
12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for the vacation
of approximately 900 square feet of the northeasterly portion of 3 ¢ Street, filed by
David and Juliane Ernst and processed as Vacation No. 3-19, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019
Agenda Category: PETITION
Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information: Third Street, as it exists today, is an 80’ wide right-of-way.
The applicant is asking for a vacation of the excess right-of-way. CL

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, map, and Staff memo

Recommended Motion: Accept the petition for vacation and direct Staff to commence
the vacation process by referring the matter to the Planning Commission.

Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Jacques Errecart
518 Commercial Street
Elko, NV 89801
Jacquesg518@gmail.com

Juliane & David Ernst
15530 Donnybrook Ct
Reno, NV 89511

Created on 6/4/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10of 1






VACATION 3-19
David and Juliane Emst
APN: 001-224-009

PROJECT INFORMATION
PARCEL NUMBER: 001-224-009
EXISTING ZONING: R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Medium Density Residential
EXISTING LAND USE: Developed, Residential
BACKGROUND:
1. The property has been developed as residential land use.
2. The property owner is proposing to renovate the home with some demolition and new
3. %%ilgﬁargsbmposed to be vacated is approximately 900 sq. ft.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
North: R-Residential / Developed
East: R-Residential / Developed
South: Commercial / Undeveloped
West: R-Residential / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is currently developed and has been vacant for many years.

The property has moderate slope to 3™ Street as well as to the southeast.

There is no sidewalk along 3™ Street and the dedicated alley to the southeast is not
developed.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

City of Elko Code — Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures

MASTER PLAN — Land Use:

1.
2.

The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is a corresponding zoning district for
Medium Density Residential.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Page 2 of 3



VACATION 3-19
David and Juliane Emst
APN: 001-224-009

1. The area is accessed from Third Street.
2. Third Street is classified as a Residential Collectors

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component.
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN
o The area is located outside the Redevelopment Area.

FINDINGS

e The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use
Component

e The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan
Transportation component

e The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

e The proposed vacation is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5(E) and 8-7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the City Council accept this petition and forward this item to the Planning
Commission for further consideration.

Page 3 of 3



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT
1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801 *
(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7119 fax

APPLICATION FOR VACATION OF CITY STREET, EASEMENT
OR OTHER PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

APPLICANT(s): DaV|d & Juliane Ernst
MAILING ADDRESS: 15530 Donnybrook Ct, Reno, NV 89511

PHONE NO (Home)775-376-3347 __(Business)
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): Same

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.)
MAILING ADDRESS: Same
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO.:001-224-009 Address 604 Third Street, Elko, NV
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision Lots 12, 11, & 4-0" of Lot 10, Elko City
Or Parcel(s) & File No.

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the applicationv an application form
must be complete and signed. Applications go before the City Council, Planning Commission,
and back to City Council twice.

Fee: A $600.00 non-refundable fee.

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent information must be provided.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the area proposed for vacation along with an
exhibit depicting the area for vacation.

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 72" x 11” in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support the request.

Revised 12/04/15 | © JUN 032019 ~ Page 1




OWNER(S) OF THE PROPERTY ABUTTING THE AREA BEING REQUESTED FOR VACATION:

Lynne Owens, 309 New Pine Street, Elko, Nevada
(Name) (Address)

OWNER(S) OF THE PROPERTY ABUTTING THE AREA BEING REQUESTED FOR VACATION:

Lisa Marie Higgins, 606 Third Street, Elko, Nevada
(Name) (Address)

1. Describe the nature of the request: Vacation of 9.00' x 100" of Third Street .

2. Describe any utilities currently located in the area proposed for vacation, and if any are present
how they will be addressed: N/A

Use additional pages if necessary

This area intentionally left blank

L ]
Revised 12/04/15 Page 2



By My Signature below:

IE,I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of
inspection said property as part of this application process.

D | object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not effect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

| acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

m | acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Applicant / Agent )&cau@’ Errecowl, HCoeg -
(Please print or type)

Mailing Address Sl Commeriice ST
Street Address or P.O. Box

elw, MV _B180

City, State, Z_ip Code
Phone Number: __ 775 758 ~945%

Email address: ‘)acigegﬁélﬁ 0) 9W:II L Ccom

SIGNATURE: _ A %//,/ Z
.//, / v
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No:_ -1 pate Filed: _L¢[3]19 _ Fee Paia: SQDD o 2009

Revised 12/04/15 Page 3



CA. THRD STREEY

S4IDSEOTW s400
REAR LOT LINE ‘ - - : g
i i
| —] t I
i i
i i
200 1 ] | |
EXISTING | : 1
— - |
i
i {
I ! ; &
] I i < P
! |
1 |
- ; i
el i =
I | s | 8
-
| [ I ) i.,....,. : 8
p—— : 3
£
— ; ] !
8 R ~— + i 8
815 812 i 1 )E
IR 1z | I :
z | i
— M I g
| I
H !
| I : b
| | / i
(T
i ! by
: : ¢
Gt o sobwacx | ! g ; N L'
‘ ! '3 i Fy)'s
.L‘ : i =
8 i 1 3
! [ N
] ! i i)
| ! 1 prorosen area OF ‘ ; !
/ VACATION !
{9.00 OF 3RD STREET ! 1
RIGHT OF WAY) . ! i
S otz | ol : - 4.00' OF LOT 10
Bk 19 : BLK 19 —1— FRONT LOT LINE BLK 19
Ny Qlw Q__sﬂDW’W"'_u'o;_"‘ _— -
CLALLEY
PROPOSED VACATION
OF THIRD STREET
RIGHT OF WAY

DAVID & JULIANNE ERNST
604 THIRD STREET
ELKO, NEVADA

SITE PLAN APN 001-224-009

1:240




EXHIBIT “A”
David & Juliane Ernst

Application for Vacation
June 4, 2019

A parcel of land located in Section 15, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.& M., City of
Elko, Nevada, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the most southerly corner of Lot 12 of Block 19 as shown on the Map of the
Town of Elko filed in the office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as document number 1,
being Comer No. 1, the True Point of Beginning;

thence North 48°01°53” West, along the southwesterly boundary of said Lot 12, a distance of
100.00 feet to Corner No. 2, being the most westerly corner of said Lot 12;

thence South 41°58°07” West, a distance of 9.00 feet to Corner No. 3;

thence South 48°01°53” East, a distance of 100.00 feet to Corner No. 4;

thence North 41°58°07” East, a distance of 9.00 feet to Comer No. 1, the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel contains an area of 900 square feet, more or less.

HIGH DESERT Engineering, LLC

640 Idaho Streat
Thomas C. Ballew Elko, NV 89801
Nevada P.L.S. 5072 page 1 of 1 (775} 738-4053



1334LS Qi

SIDEWALK

B o

\

SET 5/8" REBAR
WITH CAP MARKED

PLS 6203
(TYP,)
S 4158007° W__54.00'

)

Xz

POWER P
— W/LIGHT

J01
NEW PINE STREET
SIDEWALK

EAVE
N

45

00001

&

M .£6.10.8¢ N
-

i

ISTING

NN

EAVE CONCRETE R~
S 4158°07° W__ 5400’

ﬂi} ’
| concreTE PAD L\

N
ILDING:
ENNN g

FENCE

11"

EAVE

o Aw7

TELEPHONE
POLE

POWER
¢ POLE

SITE PLAN
FOR
JACQUES ERRECART

20 0

20

REC EIVED

— =
SCALE: 1°=20’

JUN 03 2013




{
i

H
1 ¢
i ¥
' ;o
1 i
¥ i

For assessment use only, does not
represent a survey, na liability

for accuracy is assured. Other
uses forbidden unless appraved by
Elko County Assessor.

597

689

3 ¢ ' P i

' : i P
: i 1 H i N n
N et s | ss ‘oo i |

g 341 327 363-371 388

FOURTH

440

JUNIPER ST

MHATE

¥ ¥ !
i

o«
t % @5
T
Pl i

N
x()_@..‘ ..
IO
ST.

@
63
SIXTH

FORMERLY

8§72

24

520

2UT ST,

PUBLIC
LIBRARY

1 [

®

@D

N 03 2019

69

CITY OF ELKO

! Feet
Revisio Docs.
Paree‘lsg?p #186178, 553176, 707716
Doc 156

0 2 40 80 120 gy

Last Revised: 0610412018 JiS



Agenda Item VILB.

10.

1.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action concerning an appeal from AM
Engineering to not require a full forensic and structural analysis as a condition for
the tenant improvement to the old terminal building and the City allow the
appellant to mitigate any remaining issues concerning the additional roof structure
under 2009 IBC, Chapter 34, Section 3412, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: June 11, 2019
Agenda Category: PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS
Time Required: 20 Minutes

Background Information: The City entered into a lease agreement with Elko Leasing
Company. AM Engineering is managing the tenant improvement for Elko Leasing
Company. Recent activities associated with the tenant improvements have resulted
in the discovery that an additional roof structure was constructed over the original
roof by the City. The additional roof structure was not considered in the tenant
improvement design and submittals to the City. The appellant is in the process of
finalizing permitting to address revisions to the initial tenant improvement and is
requesting relief from a possible requirement to complete a forensic and structural
analysis on this portion of the structure. SAW

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: NA

Budget amount available: NA

Fund name: NA
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Appeal and exhibit dated June 5, 2019
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
Prepared By: Scott A. Wilkinson, City of Elko Assistant City Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Aaron Martinez; P.E./Owner
AM Engineering aaron @amengineering.pro

Created on 6/5/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10f 1



Scott A. Wilkinson

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Attachments:

aaron@amengineering.pro
Wednesday, June 5, 2019 11:07 AM
Scott A. Wilkinson

Curtis Calder

Request for City Council Action
C123.pdf

Good Afternoon Mr. Wilkinson,

As we discussed in your office, there has been an issue that has arisen at the Old Terminal Building at the Airport..

1. Based on a resent discovery there seems to be a secondary roof structure built upon the original roof structure
at the facility.

d.

Per that development, WC3 has requested documentation on that item

b. Based on today’s discussion, a permit has not been found.

i. Design and Construction by City of Elko, or sub consultants

If no Permit is found, we were told by Mike Molyneux, P.E. (WC3 Company) that a full Forensic and
Structural analysis will be required to then prove the competency of the additional roof structure and its
construction
i. |believe this to be unjustified, as that design and construction was previously paid for,
presumably permitted and accepted by the City of Elko, for the Elko Airport

We propose to Operate under the Compliance Alternatives (2009 IBC, CHAPTER 34, SECTION 3412) of
the building code to mitigate any remaining concerns about the additional roof structure.
i. With the facility being upgraded with a full fire alarm and full fire sprinkler system, we propose
to perform a 1 hour rating envelope
ii. See attached

Additional comments may come from WC3 in the short term and we request the opportunity to address
any remaining items in the City Council meeting.

Thank you for your time.

Regards,

ENGINEERING

Aaron K. Martinez, P.E.
Principal Engineer / Owner

742 D Street



Elko, NV 89801
P: 775.738.3113
C: 775.848.8940
E: AARON@AMENGINEERING.PRO





























































































































































































































































































































































Agenda Item VIILB.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Ly Title: Second reading of Ordinance No. 840, an ordinance amending Title 6, Chapter
1, of the Elko City Code entitled “Fire Code” and other matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

% Meeting Date: June 11,2019

2 Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARING

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes

g Background Information: On February 26, 2019, Council approved the initiation on
Ordinance No. 840 and directed Staff to complete a Business Impact Statement. On
May 14, 2019, Council feund that Ordinance No. 840 does not impose a direct and
significant economic burden on a business or directly restrict the formation,
operation or expansion of a business. On May 28, 2019 Council approved first

reading of ordinance 840. KW

6. Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A
7. Business Impact Statement: Completed
8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Copy of Ordinance No. 840
) Recommended Motion: Approve second reading of Ordinance No. 840
10. Prepared By: Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Il Committee/Other Agency Review: N/A

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 5/00/19 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1


























































































	6/11/19 Agenda
	5/28/19 Minutes
	IA - POOL Presentation
	IB - Nevada Rural Housing Authority Presentation
	IIIC - Micro Slurry award
	IIID - Airport Custodial Services
	IVA - Parrado Partners
	VA - Sidewalks, Curbs and Gutters
	VB - Delete Title 2, Chapter 1, Section 15
	VC - Shilo Inn room tax
	VD - Thunderbird Inn room tax
	VIA - Resolution No. 9-19
	VIIA - Vacation No. 3-19
	VIIB - AM Engineering
	VIIIA - Ordinance No. 839
	VIIIB - Ordinance No. 840



